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ABSTRACT

In October 1997, the Virginia Department of Historic Resources contracted with the
cultural resource management firm of Gray & Pape, Inc., Richmond, Virginia to conduct an
architectural survey of an area adjacent to the existing Folly Castle Historic District in the City of
Petersburg, Virginia and to prepare an amended National Register nomination to include the
surveyed properties within the Folly Castle Historic District. This project was jointly fimded by
the Virginia Department of Historic Resources and the City of Petersburg,

A total of 137 properties were documented; 133 at the reconmaissance level and four at
the intensive level following the Virginia Department of Historic Resources’s guidelines, All
resources were recorded using the Department’s Integrated Preservation Software. The area
surveyed encompasses a fotal of approximately 56 acres. A Mational Register of Historic Places
nomination form for the Folly Castle Historic District Boundary Increase was prepared to inchude
the surveved properties within this historic district. A Preliminary Information Form also was
prepared for the old Petersburg High School in the existing Folly Castle Historie District.
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CHAPTER L. INTRODUCTION

In February 1997, the Virginia Department of Historic Rescurces (VIHR) solicited
proposals from local governments and planning district commissions for the purpose of entering
nto cost-share agreements for a broad range of survey and planning activities. Through
competitive evaluation, the proposal submitted by the City of Petersburg for survey of historic
resources was among those selected. The resulting project was jointly funded by the Virginda
Bepartment of Historic Resources and the City of Petersburg.

in October 1997, the VDHR contracted with the cultural resource management firm of
Gray & Pape, Inc. {Gray & Pape) under Request for Proposals (RFP) Mo, §7-98-11 o conduct a
survey of architectural resources in the City of Petersburg, Virginia and to prepare a Mational
Register of Historic Places (NRHP) nomination form for a boundary increase to the existing Folly
Castle Historic District. Also included in the project was the preparation of a Preliminary
Information Form (PIF) for the old Petersburg High School. The consultants met with
representatives from the Capital Region Office of the VDHR and Petersburg Planning Department
offivials to discuss the purpose and goals of the project, survey methodology, the survey time
frame, and project products. A public meeting with interested residents, community groups. and
city officials was also held. The architecrural fieldwork was completed in May 1998 and the
Integrated Preservation Software (IPS) forms were submitted in March 1999, The survey report
and the Folly Castle Historic District Boundary Increase National Register nomination was
submitted in March 1999

PROJECT PURPOSE AND GOALS

This survey covers an area adjacent to the existing Folly Castle Historie District and was
undertaken in order to prepare an amended National Register nomination to include the newly
surveved properties in the Folly Castle Historic District. The initial Folly Castle Historic District
was placed on the Virginia Landmarks Register in 1979 and on the National Register in 1980,
The Folly Castle Historic District extension was listed in the Virginia Register in 1991 and the
National Register in 1992,

was surveved (Figure 1}, It is bounded on the north by Commerce Street, on the east by the
existing Folly Castle Historic District, on the south by Brown and Farmer Streets, and on the west
by South and Dunlop Streets. This ares encompasses a total of approximately 36 acres.

The purpose of this report i3 to present the findings of the survey of this area of the City
of Petersburg and to place the documented resources within their appropriate time frame and
historic context thus providing a basis to evaluate these resource. The report also presents



recommendation for further study of this srea or adjacent area, preservation planning, and
educational projects.

SCOPE OF WORK
The scope of work for this project included the following tems:

L. Anarchitectural survey of 137 properties; 133 at the reconnaissance level and four at
the miensive level. The old Petersburg High School was one of the property surveved at the
intensive level. Each property surveyed at the intensive level included a detailed description and
evaluation of the property, 10 black and white photographs that adequately documented the
primary resource, any secondary respurces, and the buildings’s setting, a site plan and floor plan
sketch of the main floor, and a map showing its location. The reconnaissance level survey
documented a single property, including primary and secondary resources, provided a physical
description and a brief evaluation of the property placing it in its local historical and architectural
context. Photographs, a site plan, and a map locating the property were also included mn the
reconnaissance level survey. The survey was conducted according to the procedures established
by the Secretary of the Interior’s Guidelines for A Comprehensive Reconnaissance Swrvey. All
properties surveyed were emtered into the VDDHRs Integrated Preservation Software (IPS)
PIOEram,

2. The preparation of a Preliminary Information Form (PIF} for the Petersburg High
School property (Appendix A).

3. The preparation of a survey report with ten bound iHlustrated copies of the final survey
report (five copies to VDHR and five copies to the City of Petersburg), two lpose-leaf copies of
the final report (one to VDHR and one to the City of Petersburg), and two computer diskettes
containing the report written in WordPerfeet 5,1 or higher or ASCIL

4. The preparation of an amended National Register registration form to included these
newly surveyed properties in an expanded Folly Castle Historic District {(Appendix B).

5. The preparation of maps that show all surveyed properties.

6. The preparation of a scripted slide presentation to provide a general overview of
sigmificant surveyed properties that will be suitable for presentation to public bodies, civic
organizations and schools and that may be used at the final public hearing.

7. Three general presemation which include 4) a public meeting at the beginning of the
project with Petersburg officials, residents of the Folly Castle neighborhood, members of the Folly
Castle Civic Association or other interested participants, b) public presentation at the completion
of the project to discuss the survey findings and expanded historic district nomination, and ©)
presentation to the VDHR National Register Evaluation Team of the expanded district and those



properties deemed to be individually eligible for listing on the National Register including the
Preliminary Information Form for the Petersburg High School
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CHAPTER 1L HISTORIC CONTEXT

OVERVIEW

Petersburg’s location at the falls of the Appomartox River, like that of other fall line cities
in Virginia, fostered its later development as the commercial, industrial, and transportation center
of the region. It began in the mid-seventeenth century as a fort and trading center but developed
in the eighteenth century as an export and processing center for agricultural products from the
surrounding areas. By about 1800, some 3,500 people lived in Petershurg and by 1820 is was the
state’s third largest town.'

On the eve of the Civil War, Petersburg was second in size only to Richmond in the state,
was the seventh largest city in the South and was one of the more important ndustrial centers.
During the early part of the war, an economy based on military needs of the Confederacy
developed. The nine month siege of Petersburg, however, crippled its economy and damaged its
infrastructure. As the city and the region struggled to recover from the war, changes in
transportation networks, agricultural patterns, and competition from other areas of the country
made it difficult to regain Petersburg’s pre-war level of prosperity and position.

In the Iate-nineteenth and early-twentieth centuries, industries important to the city such as
tobaceo processing and cotton and four milling declined in importance. The production of tunks
and luggage, optical lenses, and fountain pens took their place. Petersburg also became less
important as 2 wholesale and retail commercial center. The establishment nearby of Camp Lee
during World War T and the industrial sites at Hopewell created a boom for the area during that
period. Tourism has also played an increasing role in the economy of Petersburg with the
establishment of a national park at the Petersburg Bartlefield and various city museums.

EUROPEAN SETTLEMENT TO SOCIETY (1607-1730)

Petersburg began in the 1640s as Fort Henry which was erected by the colony to provide
some protection for European colonists on the south side of the James River from the Native
American inhabitants of the region. More importantly, it became a trading center and point of
departure for expeditions to Virginia's western lands, Abraham Wood commanded Fort Henry
and patented land on the Appomatiox River as early as 1638. Wood either led or dispatched
some of the sarliest explorations of the land to the south and west. These explorations, in the
16308 and 16703, significantly expanded England’s claim to western lands. It is thought by some

'Land and Commmmity Associates [LCAJ “Petersburg Courthouse Historie District,”
National Register of Historic Places Registration Form, 1990, Section 8, p. 2.

o~
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students of Petersburg’s history, that Fort Henry stood in the vicinity of West High Street an
South Street, just north of the survey area.”

Bristol Parish, which encompasses Petersburg, also was established in the 1640s. Az in
other greas of the Virginia colony, not only did this Anglican parish attend to the ecclesiastical
needs of the inhabitants, it provided quasi-governmental services such as aid to the poor and
orphaned and land processioning, Ferry Chapel, one of the early chapels of Bristo! Parish is
thought to have stood near the train depot at the foot of Sveamore Street. In 1735-37, a brick
church, which became known as Blandford Church, was built on Wells's Hill in Blandford 1o
replace Ferry Chapel.  Blandford Church was the Anglican parish or mother church in the
Petersburg ares until after the Revolutionary War.

Trade followed Wood’s explorations into the interior and these initial lines of exploration
everfually expanded into a regional network of trade with the Mative American population of the
region. Petersburg’s location at the bead of the navigation of the Appomattox River meant that it
becare a collection and distribution point for both buyer and seller. It was the beginnings of
Petersburg’s long commercial history.  In the late seventeenth century, Peter Jones, son-in-law
of Abraham Wood and for whom Petersburg was named, established a successful trading post
here continuing Wood’s tradition of trade with Native Americans. He also assumed command of
Fort Henry, His trading post is thought 10 have stood near the intersection of Morth Sycamore
and Old Streets.”

By 1730, s tobacco inspection station/warehouse was suthorized on the land of Colonel
Robert Bolling, 2 major land holder in the area. Two vears later 2 second warshouse was
authorized on the north side of the river beginning the development of warehouses, mills, and
stores along the Appomattox River. The potential for the creation of a town in this area was
recognized by many including Colopel William Byrd I of Westover who wrote that “the
uppermost landing of the James and Appomattox Rivers, are naturally intended for Marts, where
the Traffick of the Outer Inhabitants must Center,™  In 1743, hoth Petersburg and Blandford
were created as towns.

Petersburg first developed on the relatively flat land along the banks of the Appomatiox
River, A 1738 map of Petersburg shows lots arranged on both sides of one strest, Major
landowners in what is pow the downtown area included the Jones family, Colonel Robert Bolling,

“Jamnes G. Scott and Edward A. Wyatt, IV, Perersburg’s Story, A History, (Petersburg
By the Authors, 19603, p. 6.

*Virginia Historie Landmarks Commission [ Virginia Dep mt of Historie Resources),
“Petersburg Old Town Historic District,” Mational Register of Historic Places Momination Form,
1979, Bection B, p. 3.

*Scott and Wyatt, p. 16



Jobn Tabb, and Erasmus Gl Bolling™s property lay to the sast of Sycamore Street and his use
of annual ground rents affected much of the development of that area of Petersburg. Tabb, Jones,
and Gill owned land west of Sycamore Street.”  The survey area for this project was pwned by
the Jones family during this period,

COLONY TO NATION (1750-1789)

Petersburg’s strategic location at the falls of the Appomattox River advanced its
development as a commercial, industrial and transportation center of the region. Between 1730
and the American Revolution, Petersburg was one of the leading tobaceo markets in the colonies.
Mills also appeared at an early date and by the end of the colonial period, Petersburg was one of
the new nation’s milling centers. Petersburg was probably the first town in Virginia where
manufacturing plaved a major role and the tobacco industry was a key element of industry in the
town.”

In 1752, a third town, named Pocahontas, was established in the ares and 8 bridge
connecting it with Petersburg was built. In 1761 Petersburg was described as “very greatly
increased, and becoming a place of considerable trade.” . Tobacco warehouses and flour mills
could be found in Petersburg and it was becoming the trading center of the surrounding farmiand.

in 1738, Peter Jones V, a descendant of the Peter Jones for whom Petersburg was named,
inherited  large portion of what is now central Petersburg. In 1762 he laid off 28 acres into lots.®
Purchasers were required o build on them within four vears or they would be resold and the
proceeds used to build wharves and make other improvements. A vear later, in 1763, Jones built
his house known as Folly Castle. The existing Folly Castle Historic District incorporates this
land. At Jones's death in 1779, his niece, Sarah Newsum, inherited his Petersburg property
mehiding Folly Castle. Sarsh married Erasmus Gill in 1786 and they subdivided their extensive
tand holdings into lots which became known as Gillfield.  Although the General Assembly
authorized the annexation of Gillfield into Petersburg in 1798, it seems to have been inchuded in
its boundaries by 1784.°  In 1784, the three existing towns of Petersburg, Blandford, and

SLCA, Section &, p. 3.

*Lawrence L. Hartzell, “Glory Days: Petersburg in the Antebellum Era,” paper delivered
at the Historic Petersburg Symposium, Petersburg, Va., 10 March 18590, p. 5.

"Seott and Wyatt, p. 20

*Diane Pierce, “Folly Castle Historie District (Boundary Increase),” National Register of
Historic Places Registration Form, 1991, Section &, p. 2.

*Seott and Wyatt, p. 35.



Pocahontas and the lands of Colonel Robert Bolling, John Tabb, the land known as Ravenscrofl, a
small part of the land of the heirs of Peter Jones, V, and the land known as the “Subberbs” were
constituted as the borough of Petersburg. Most of the present survey ares, from the existing Folly
Castle District west to Jones Strest, was mcluded in the 1784 town boundarnes.

Education during this period was largely the responsibility of the individual and primarily
the domain of the well-to-do.  The Reverend George Robertson of Bristol Parish mentioned a
school in the area as early as 1724.° In 1786, the Reverend John Cameron advertised the
opening of the Petersburg Academy where he and an assistant would teach “the English, Latin,
and Greek langusges, Writing, Arthmetic, Geography, Book-Keeping, and the practical branches
of the Mathematics.” As befitting a clergyman, moral instruction was an mnportant part of the
curriculum. !

Dwuring this period, denominations other than Anglican began fo gain importance in
Petersburg including the Methodists and the Presbyvierians. The first Methodist church in town
was built on Harrison Street i 1774, It was nsed as a hospital by American troops during the
revolution and then was burned by the British roops.  Samuel Davies, the great Presbyterian
orator, is said to have preached in Petersburg about 1750 and Presbyvterianism here is reflective of
the mumber of Scottish factors and merchants that made Petersburg their home. The Baptists are
beheved to have beld services in Petersburg in the 17905, Two African American Baptist
churches were established at an early date. The Gillfield Baptist Church descends from a
congregation that existed by 1803, if not earlier, and the First Baprist Church was formed in
Prince George County in 1774 and Iater moved to Petersburg,

The British were attracted to Petersburg during the American Revolution largely because
it had become a center of trade and commerce. They marched on Petersburg in April 1781 to
seize public stores and destroy the large gquantities of tobacco that had been stored thers when
gxport abroad became difficult because of British privatesrs. Although the Americans put up stff
resistence, they were eventually forced to retreat across the Appomattox River, burning the bridge
behind them. The Briush General William Phillips made his headguarters at the Bolling home
Bollingbrook. Phillips died from disease at Bollingbrook in May and is said to have been buried m
the Blandford Church cometery.

MScott and Wyatt, p. 115,
YSeott and Wyatt, p. 116,

Seott and Wyatt, p. 104,



EARLY NATIONAL PERIOD (1789-1830)

By the 1820s, Petersburg had a booming business conymunity growing out of its eminence
as a tobacco shipping port and manufacturing center. There was considerable domestic and
foreign trade particularly with New York, England, France, Holland, and Germany. Tobacco
warchouses, mills, stores, and small manufacturing establishments dominated the town’s economy
and built environment. The town had few public buildings and those were described in less than
glowing terms. In 1793, a courthouse, frame like most of the buildings In town, was completed.
One visitor in the carly 1800s echoed the sentiments of others when he made the following
comment, “I don't admire the situation of Petersburyg; it is g very unpleasant looking place, but it
is a very busy one, and much trade is carried on here.””  Most of the buildings, including houses,
were conceniraled in an area bounded by Old, Bollingbrook, Syeamore, Tabb, and Market streets,
There were few other houses including the areas known as Gillfield, Ravenscroft, and Pride’s Old
Field." A devastating fire in 1815 destroyed two-thirds of the buildings in Petersburg. After that
date, most buildings were constructed of brick to reduce the fire hazard.

To the west of the core areg of Petersburg and the survey area was Pride’s Field, The
Pride’s Field tract had been sold to William Pride about 1745 by Major Peter Jones. About 1807
to 1810, Pride’s descendants, Frederick Jones Pride, Halcot Jones Pride, and Cadwalder Jones,
sold the land to Samuel Christian, Donald Mackengde, R Maitland and Willlam Bowden who laid
out the land in lots. Until then this land had been a large farm with a fow tenant houses and mills
at the north end of the parrow falls of the Appomatiox River. It was the mills and canal that
attracted the foursome to purchase and develop this land. By 1813, few houses had been erected
in this development.” An 1830 plat shows the lavout of Pride’s Field including the ownership of
lots, the canal, and a large “companys square” where the canal basin was located.”® Pride’s Field
was bounded on the east by South Street on the north by Phumb Street {now McKenzie Street},
on the west by West Street and on the south by Brick House Run.

The west side of South Street and one block of West Washington Strest from Sounth
Street to Dunlop Street of the survey area would have been in Pride’s Field, In 1830, the lots on
the north side of Washington Street i Pride’s Field were owned by either Willlam Bowden, at the
castern end of the block, or William Robertson on the western end. Samuel Christian retained
ownership of the land on the south side of the street,

BScott and Wyatt, p. 50.

“Seott and Wyatt, p. 51.

YScott and Wyatt, p. 51,

“j‘?eiemburg gasting Court Deed Book [PHC DB 8:299
i



Except for the block in Pride’s Field, Joseph Jones owned most of the land in the
extension area in the late eighteenth century which was referred to as “Joseph Jopes slip of land.”
This tand had descended from the original Peter Jones through several generations to Joseph
Jones. Joseph Jones was a general in the militia and lived at Cedar Grove, located southwest of
the survey area, which he had inherited through his father from Abraham Jones. Jones Sireet, one
of the early roads in the survey area, derives its name from the Jones family and was earlier known
as Jones Road or the General Jones Road.

Henry Mollner (also spelled Nolener) acguired land on West Washington Street as early as
1812 when he purchased two lots on the south side of Washington Street from Joseph Jones in
the existing Folly Castle Historic District. He also purchased land on the north side of
Washington where he built a large house on his corner lot. In 1822, the Petersburg Aqueduct
Company was established to take over the Petersburg water system which had been established by
1807, It furnished water to the town’s residents through subterranean pipes. Among other
sourees, it drew part of its water from springs located on the north side of Washington Street
adiacent to the Nollner property. The springs were referred to in one city history as Dr. Nollner's
springs.”” In 1838, the Aqueduct Company refers to this as their reservoir lot.™

The new century witnessed a number of public improvements in addition to the water
system. Bollingbrook was the main street during this period and the first to be tmproved and
paved in 1813, One of the frst projects supported by the Virginia Board of Public Works was the
Manchester and Petersburg Turnpike which began operations in 1816, There were also a number
of improvements made 1o aid the navigation of the Appomattox River. During the first decade of
the nineteenth century, the Upper Appomattox Cansl Company constructed a canal around the
falls of the Appomattox. In time, locks were constructed slong almost the entire route betwesn
Petershurg and Farmville in Prince George County funneling more trade to Petersburg. The canal
basin was located at the imtersection of High and South Streets just north of the survey area. As
many as 125 batteaux could be found there and warchouses were built in s vicinity 1o store
produce and goods brought into Petersburg.” The canal lost most of #ts importance after the
construction of the South Side Ratlroad in the 1850s.

The Petersburg Academy was the first school to be incorporated inthe city in 1 7% and in
1804 the General Assembly authorized a lottery to raise funds for the school. One of its earliest
principals was John Wood, the cartographer. By 1813, the Academy had acquired the Paradise
Tract on West Washington Street where the old Petershurg High School now stands from Joseph

"Seott and Wyatlt, p. 60.
BPHC DBI10:440.
¥Scott and Wvatt, p. 83,
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Jones.® It appears that it was never a ungualificd success and by 1822 it was deseribed asina
“ruinous condition and occupied by dissolute characters.” In 1835, the property was transferred
to the Anderson Seminary.”

Anderson Seminary was Petersburg’s most important free school of the antebellum period.
It wag made possible by the bequest of David Anderson, a Scot who was g Petersburg merchant.
His will, probated in 1812, lefl $10.000 for the education of poor white children who were to be
instructed for three vears in reading, writing, and arithmetic. The city responded to this bequest
by applving its share from Virginia’s Literary Fund to this school. It opened in 1821 and by 1830,
some 400 pupils had been enrclled. ™ An 1855 photograph of the Anderson Seminary, built on the
Paradise tract on West Washington Street where the old Petersburg High School now stands,
shows a large, three story brick building with a crenelated tower of the same height on one side of
the facade and a five story tower on the other side.™

Organized religious groups were not as active in early Petersburg as they were in other
areas of the state and travelers noted that churches were not a conspicuous feature of the town,
Several accounts noted the lack of religion here. A Presbyvierian mindster wrote in 1812 that
“religion was at a low ebb in the town and the number of communicants in any church was small”
Another stated that “infidelity was a thing of fashion and a boast.”™ By the early 1820s, the
situation improved and a new resident wrote that “sin and Satan had been broken; the town had a
Bible Society, a Missionary Society, 3 Dorcas Society, and an orphan asvlum.” She also noted
that “Presbyterians carry the day here.™ By 1835, there were seven churches i Petersburg.

During the colonial period, the Anglican church had been the established church of the
Virginia colony and Bristol Parish included the Petersburg area.  After the Revolutionary War
and the disestablishment of the Anglican Church, Blandford Church was used mfrequently and the
Episcopalians built a new church in 1803 on the approximate site of the present Courthouse. This
church was free to be used by other denominations when not in use by the Episcopalians,

UPHC DB 4:1735,

Seott and Wyatt, p. 117,

FSeott and Wyatt, p. 118,

“Rosy Rash, curator, “Petershurg Pupils, Education in the Cockade City”, typescript of
exhibit captions at Centre Hill Mansion, Petersburg Musewmns, Department of Tourism,
Petershurg, Va., 1998,

HScott and Wyatt, p. 100-101.

PSeott and Wyatt, p. 101



ANTEBELLUM PERIOD (1830-1860;

The designation of Petersburg as Virginia's third city in 1830 was s recognition of its
growth and potential. In that year, its population stood at 14,010 mcluding 4,729 slaves and
2,616 free African Americans.® Transportation improvements included the construction of five
raflroads during this period including the South Side Railroad and the Norfolk and Petersburg
Railroad. The Appomatiox River was deepened and the city experimented with plank roads. Al
of these transportation improvements contributed to the cty’s continued growth in commerce and
manufacturing.

One historian of Petersburg has noted that the city in 1860 was “first a conunercial and
then an industrial city.”™ Petershurg’s commerce began with the numerous factors, many of them
Seottish, who purchased agricultural products from the region’s plantation owners and farmers
and arranged credit and transportation to sell the products. A number specialized in overseas
trading. Retail merchants also succesded in the city. The city was the hub of a river and rail
transportation system that facilitated commerce and trade.

By 1860, 67 commission merchants and 237 retailers, 159 of them grocers, operated in the
city.®® There were also druggists, jewelers, shoe dealers, dry goods shops, dressmakers, hardware
stores, and saddleries in antebelhum Petersburg. Many of wholesalers and retailers were located
along North Sveamore Street, Old Street, and on adjacent cross streets.

Petersburg's manufacturing base also continued to expand. By 1835 there were six
tobaceo factories, six mansfacturing Hour mills, one brass and cast-iron foundry, two earthenware
potteries, two cotton seed of mills, four carriage factories, four cabinet makers, three brick yards,
one stone cutter, two tanneries, Gfteen blacksmiths, four coppersmiths and tinplate workers, and
mumerous mercantile stores.” In 1843, the Niles’ Register listed eight cotton factories, three
flouring mills, a paper mill, and a woolen factory, The capital iInvestment in cotton and tobacco
factories was nearly 31,000,000 each and $125,000 in the flowr mills.™ On the eve of the Civil
War, Petersburg was one of the few large industrial cities in the region producing significant

“Scott and Wyatt, p. 156-157,
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amounts of tobacco, cotton, flour, iron, and other goods.™

Although Petersburg had a diverse industrial base, tobaceo processing dominated the
city’s industries, Tobacco factories were labor intensive and relied almost exclusively on slave
labor, two-thirds of which were hired and not owned by the manufacturer. Since tobacco
factories were not dependant on water power, they could be located away from the Appomattox
River and they were located throughout the town. The Reuben Ragland tobacco factory stood on
the southeast corner of Washington and Jones streets in the survey area. It was not uncommon
for a manufacturer to site his factory and dwelling in the same block.

Tobaceo manufacturing in Petersburg was dominated by men of Scottish descent such as
Robert Leslie, Robert Watson, James Dunlop and David Tennant. Leslie opened his factory in
1818 and by 1860 there were twelve tobaceo factories in the city. They accounted for almost
sixty percent of the ¢ity™s total value of industrial cutput.™

The cotton industry was second to tobacco in Petersburg. The first cotton mill opened n
Petersburg in 1827 and most others began in the late 1830s with cotton from the neighboring
southside Virginia and MNorth Caroling counties. Unlike the tobacco factories, the cotton factories
relied almost entirely on white labor. They also required more machinery than tobacco with the
result that their average capitalization in 1860 was about fifty percent greater.”™ Petersburg
became the state’s leading city i the manufacture of cotton products.™  The depression of 1857
severely dampened the cotton industry in Petersburg. By 1860, there wers only five companies
still in production in Petersburg.™ An cutgrowth of the cotton industry was the cottonseed ofl
industry, In 1829, Francis Follet a Petershurg native, invented a machine that separated cotion
seed kernels from the hulls, Cottonseed ol then could be extracted from the kernels.

Flour milling was the third major component of manufacturing in Petersburg and
acvounted for one-fourth of the industrial value of the city. In 1792, Petersburg, Blandiord, and
Pocahontas each had a flowr mspector and flowr milling was one of the first industries, By the
1850s, much of the ¢itv’s flour was shipped to South American and Australia.®

THartzell, p. 1.
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Several industrial facilities were located in the area south of Washington Street betwesn
Pine Street and Brick House Run in the survey area. Henry Nollner had 2 slaughter house at the
northern end of this section on Washington Street. Just to the south was the soap and candle
factory of James Smith which probably made good use of the slwughter house by-products. James
Smith & Son, which was established in 1844, produced 275,000 pounds of soap anually by
1894.% South of the Smith land was the C.R. Bishop Tobacco Factory plus a tannery and another
stock vard.™

Africans Americans have played a substantial role in the history of Petersburg. By 1800,
fifty percent of Petersburg’s population was African American and that percentage held through
1860.7 A large portion of Petersburg’s African American population was free. By 1810, there
were over a thousand free blacks in Petersburg which was close to a third of the town’s fres
population. By 1860, that number had incressed to 3,000 which was the largest free black
commmnity of any city in Virginia.®  Although most fres African Americans lived at the bottom
of the economic ladder in poverty, twenty percent of the Petersburg property owners in 18560
were free blacks - almost equally divided among men and women ™

Petersburg’s African American residents worked in g number of vecupations. The
majority of workers in the tobacco industry were slaves who were hired out. This frequently
provided the slave with the opportunity to choose his hirer and his sccommodations, often with a
free black family. From the 1860 census, the occupations of free black men can be identified.
Laborers, tobacco workers, barbers, carpenters, raflroad firemen, livery stable operators.®  Free
women of color worked as laundresses, seamstresses, and domestics and a few ran small stores,
grocery stores, and taverns. After 1820, they also worked as stemmers in tobaceo factories®

The African American community in antebellum Petersburg was able to establish its own
mstitutions in the face of great obstacles. There were fow educational opportunities for Africans
Amerivans prior o the Civil War, especially those enslaved.  Those free blacks that could sent

“Petershurg Chamber of Commerce, The City of Petersburg, Virginia, 1894,
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their children to schools in the North and in southern urban areas churches and benevolent

- societies established schools. Some early schools were available for the lorge free Aftican
American population of Petersburg. In 1820, a Boston minister organized a dav school. Afler
1831, teaching African Americans, both free and slave, was prohibited but some secret schools
operated. ™

As noted earlier, two African American Baptist churches were established in Petersburg by
1800. By 1830, they had a combined membership of over 1200 and excesded 3500 by 1860.%
The Union Street Methodist Chureh also was established when its white members decided to
move to Washington Street and leave the Upion Street building for its black members. One
famous member of the Union Street Methodist Church was Joseph Roberts, a river boatman,
Active the Liberian colonization movement which was based in Petersburg, Roberts went to
Liberia in 1829 and became a teacher, businessman, and eventually commander of the Liberian
army. He became governor of the colony in 1841 and sfter independence in 1848 was the
country’s first president.

Several schools were established in Petersburg during this period. The Petersburg
Benevolent Mechanic Association established a day school for children of its members and
apprentices as well as a night school. The Petersburg Classical Institute, established in 1838, was
sponsored by Presbyierian laymen. Petersburyg also had fres schools but there was a certain
stigma attached to attending a free school that was clearly labeled for the poor. They were
frequently referred to as “the poor school” or “charity school”. The Petersburg Imtelligencer
opined that education should be lefl to the individual and warned that public education would
“destroy freedom of opinion, the purity of republicanism, and the advancement of a liberal aystem
of education.”® There were also a number of women, usually widows and spinsters, who opened
schools for the “voung ladies.” By the 1840s, most school teachers, both male and female, were
from the North.Y

Religious mstitutions continued to expand and some of Petersburg’s most prominent
churches were built during this period. In 1837, the frame Episcopal Church on Courthouse Hill
was sold i order to make way for the construction of the courthouse and a new one was built on
Syeamore Street. That church burned in 1854 and a new church, St Paul's, was constructed on
Union Street. Designed by architects Niernesee and Nielson of Baltimore and completed in 1857,
# exemplifies antebellum church architecture in Virginia in its free interpretation of the second
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phase of the Gothic Revival style.”® Many Confederate officers, including General Lee, worshiped
 here during the Petersburg siege and after the war Lee’s son was married here. Grace Church. 2
second Episcopal church, was established in 1841 as a result of a mission.”  Several other
churches were later establizhed as missions of Grace Church including St. John's in the survey
area.

The Methodists became so sirong in the Petersburg area, that the area has been called the
cradle of Methodism in the South.” Washington Street Methodist Church was completed in 1842
ardd the first General Conference of the Methodist Church South was held here in 1846, It was
also used as a hospital during the siege of Petersburg. The church is individually listed on the
National Register. Other early Methodist churches in Petersburg were High Street {1844) and
Market Street (1838),

A Presbyvterian congregation was organized in 1812-1813. Tabb Street Presbyterian
Church was built in 1843, Designed by Philadelphia architect Thomas U, Walter, the Greek
Revival-style building features an apse fronted by a colommade in the Tower of the Winds order
{also found on the Courthouse and Petersburg High School). The Second Presbyterian Church,
located on West Washington Street, is a Gothic Revival-style church that was built in 1861, Both
of these Preshyterian churches are individually Hsted on the National Register of Historic Places.
The latter also i located in the Folly Castle Historic District.

The first white Baptist church was formed in 1817 and by 1855-1456 the congregation,
also known as First Baptist Church, had built ¢ church on West Washington Street at the site of
the present First Baptist Church. The existing Neo-Classical Revival-style church was built in
192€ and is in the Folly Castle Historic District.

A Catholic Mass is known 1o have been celebrated as early as 1820 in Petersburg. The
first St. Joseph’s Catholic Church was built in 1841 at the comer of Washington and Market
Streets. Confederate Geperal P T, (. Beauregard worshiped there during the siege. In 1894,
that building was razed and the present church built.”™ In 1877, St. Joseph's established a
Catholic cemetery adjacent to the city-owned Blandford Cemetery on Wells™s Hill,

The earliest buildings that survive in project area were probably built during this time
period - most in the latter vears. They are clustered on South Jones and South South Street. One
heuse is the survey area that dates from this period is the Couch House, located at the corner of
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West Washingron and South South Street. It is a brick, two-story, thres-bay, double-pile house
that was for many vears in the nineteenth century the home of Dr. Charles Couch. The remainder
of the houses from this period in the survey srea are frame, generally two stories, two or three-
bay, with gable roofs, and several have exterior-end chimmeys.

CIVIL WAR (1861-1865)

The Civil War brought tremendous changes and challenges to Petersburg. The onset of
the Civil War had a significant impact on Petersburg’s industries and commerce. Indusiries
dependant on foreign trade were closed within six mounths of the Union naval blockade of
Hampton Roads which began in April 1861, Many of the large brick tobacco factories that were
put out of business were used as hospitals for the Confederate wounded during the war. The
Reuben Ragland Tobacco Factory that stood on the southeast corner of West Washington and
Jones Streets until the late 1870s or early 1880s served as a hospital during the siege of
Petersburg. Due to its distance from the shelling in the eastern sections of the city, it remained
open throughout the siege.”

The Confederate government invested heavily in Petersburg which created a short wartime
economy. The Confederate Navy established a ropewalk and powder mill and the army
Ordinance Corps sef up a lead works to make rifle bullets. Copper and zinc works produced
percussion caps for army rifles and a major component of gunpowder was manufactured in the
city. The Quartermaster Corps also organized a wagon wheel plant.™

It was Petersburg’s location as the hub of a transportation network that eventually
brought the war to its doorstep. Several regional roads connected in Petersburg linking it with
points in all directions. Likewise, the railroad connections made the city a sirategic location. The
Petersburg and Weldon Railroad provided an important link with the Confederate port of
Wilmington, North Carolina and the South Side Railroad, through other connections, reached
deep into the western Confederacy. It was these southern supply lines that were the focus of the
Federal forces plan to overtake the Confederates entrenched in Petersburg and Richmond during
1364 and 1865. On June 9, 1864, Union forces attacked the lightly defended Dimmock Line, 8
tine of fortifications that almost completely surrounded Petersburg. The “old men and boys,” as
they are known in Petersburg, whe were brilliantly led by Confederate General P.T.G Beauregard,
managed to keep the Federal forces at bay until Confederate reinforcements arrived. Thus began
the standoff between Union and Confederate forces that continued until the Confederate army
evacuated Petersburg on April 2, 1865 and the City surrendered to Federal troops in the early
morning howrs of April 3%

SEdward A. Wyatt, IV, dlong the Streets of Petersburg, (Petersburg: By the Author,
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During the Siege of Petersburg, the city sutfered frequent shelling by Union forces arrayed
o the east. The northeastern part of the ity was the most vulnerable but almeost the entire city
was within range. The practice of using church steeples to site by or as targets meant that most
churches and public building suffered some type of damage. One report suggested that more than
800 buildings in Petersburg had been damaged.” The shelling caused fewer deaths and injuries
than expected but it forced the abandonment of Blandford Cemetery as a place for burials. The
vards of the city’s churches became temporary cemeteries.

Civil War era maps show the survey area as lightly settled. There is a large open ares on
both sides of West Washington Street from Perry and North Folly streets on the east (within the
existing Folly Castle Historie District) to Jones Street on the west. On the north side of West
Washington Street, Hinton and Commerce Street were not shown from Pride’s Field east to
Market Street. Hazel Street, a north/south street also is not shown on the map. South of
Washington Street, a number of streets do not appear on these maps. Although mentioned in
deeds as early as 1812 with lots platted on both sides of the sireet by 1838, Pine Street’s absence
on Civil War Maps may indicate that nothing had been built here over twenty years after it was
kid out. Also not shown on these maps are the cast/west streets of Brown, Lawrence, and
Lumsden. There is a street roughly in the area of today’s Wythe Street.

There were few buildings along West Washington Street in the survey area east of Jones
Street and there were several buildings clustered around that intersection. Washington Street,
from Jones Street west had buildings located on both sides of it. There were also buildings found
on both sides of South and Jones Streets both of which run in a nortlsouth direction,

RECONSTRUCTION AND GROWTH (1863-1917)

In the aftermath of the Civil War, Petersburg moved 1o rebuild both the city and is
gconomy. The Common Council, frequently operating with borrowed money, rebuilt the bridges
across the Appomattox that had been burned by the retreating Confederates and cleared the river
of obstacles. A horse~drawn streetcar line began operation in 1883, The streets that it initially
ran on included Second, River, Rock, Old, Syeamore, Washington, West, Farmer, Oak. Halifax |
ardd Liberty. In 1888, a Iine was extended to the quarries near the Central Lunatic Asylom {now
Central State Hospital) which was established during this same period. After 1899, the line was
completely electrified and continued operating until busses were introduced.™

The fall of the Confederacy and the destruction left from the war precipitated a steep
decline in Petersburg’s economy but there were g number of other factors that caused
Petersburg’s industries  decline. As elsewhere in the South, the freeing of the slaves was an
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immediate loss of wealth for many Petersburg residents. Changes and consolidation of
transportation routes that by-passed Petersburg also effected industry, Industrial growth in
Petershurg after the war fell well below the national average.®

The tobaceo ndustry recovered rapidly after the war, Both capital invested in the industry
and sales increased and factories became more efficient with the introduction of power machinery.
Unfortupately, the monetary gains in this industry did not trickle down to the low paid African
American workers.” Beginning in the 1890s, changes in the domestic tobacco market were not
embraced by the city’s tobaceo industry and it gradually declined. The market shifted from the
old- fashioned, strong, dark, Virginia fire cured tobacco to mulder bright flue cured tobacco,
sweetened chewing tobacco, cigars, and cigarettes, This change largely relegated Petersburg’s
tobacco manufacturers to the export market which did not expand as quickly as did the domestic
market.

In the survey areq, the Seidenberg & Company, Ine. cigar factory was buill around 1910
1t is a three-story brick building on a rassed basement with corbeled cornices and central tower on
the facade. The original windows have been blocked up. It was typical of a number of
Petersburg factories in that it was located in a mostly residential arca. By 1954, i was part of
American Tobaceo Company and used 1o store tobacen In cases.

The production of cotton alse dropped immediately atter the war but the mill's situation
improved in the early 1870s with six cotton mills emploving 500 people.™ Unfortunately, the
depression of 1873 wiped out most gaims and many mills closed for several months, The industry
rebounded in the mid-1870s and by 1880 reached a post-war high. The industry began a decline
after 1880 due to increased competition from other states to the south, Mew England, and
Europe. Due to a number of circumstances, Petersburg’s cotton mills were unable to modemnize
and continued o lose ground.

Petersburg’s flour mulls faced many of the same conditions as #s cotton mills.
Competition from the vast western whest and corn belt killed most of the city’s mills as
agricultural prices dropped below production costs. By 1900, only two small mills operated in
Petersburg and added little to the local economy.”  The iron industry in Petersburg also failed to
modernize and grew modestly after the war, The distance from the supply of raw materials was a
major drawback. In 1860, one iropworks had made railroad steam engines. After the war,
production focused on less sophisticated items and more on ftems of local consumption
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particularly farm machinery. Iron workers were among the highest paid factory laborers and the
ironmasters could live comfortably.”

Several other industries could be found in Petersburg, The hulling and cleaning of peanuts
contributed to the city’s economy. In 1913, i was the fourth leading export from Petersburg with
five peanut factories. By 1960, there was only one. Fountain pens were also manufactured in the
city. In 1508, the Titmus Optical Company began making prescription and wholesale lens as
adiunct to a jewelry business. By 1964, it had become one of the largest independent lens
companies in the country.  Probably Petersburgs most important industry in the late ninetesnth
century and throughout the twentieth century is Seward Luggage Co. Begun in 1370 by Simon
Seward and his brother-in-law, H. F. Munt, it became the largest producer of trunks in the world,
Although much reduced in size. it continues 1o be one of Petersburg’s largest employers.

The consolidation of ratlroads after the Civil War decreased the number of jobs and new
routes reduced the need for trains to stop in Petershurg and directed trade away from the city.
The city’s port also declined as larger ships could no longer navigate the narrow and shallow
Appomattox River. Ships that once transported manufactured goods directly from Petersburg
now stopped at Norfolk. Petersburg’s wholesale merchants suffered as a result of these
transportation changes. Changes in farming practices afler'the war, such as sharecropping, and
the rise of the county store which traded with the local farmer cut deeply into Petersburg’s
commission merchants. By 1900, only 27 of the prewar 67 survived.” The poverty of the rural
areas to the east, south, and west and the low wages paid by area factories cut into the buying
power of the reglon’s residents.

After the war, Petersburg’s African American community built on its base of economic
and civie life that had been established before the war by the largest wrban free black population in
Virginia. 1t was during this period that African Americans in Petersburg experienced a period of
significant political influence and growth in its institutional ife even though the city of Petersburg
entered a longer period of decline. With enfranchisement, African American registered voters
outnumbered white voters and exercised its new found power. In 1868, Petersburg sent two
Aldrican Americans, Peter G, Morgan and George Fayverman, to the House of Delegates. Both had
been free before the war. Morgan, g shoemsker, had purchased his freedom by hiring himself out
to make money. He later served on the city’s school board and city couneil. Fayerman had been
born free and came to Petersburg after the war. Both were property owners.® Other African
Americans from Petersburg followed their lead serving in both branches of the General Assembly.
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During the post-war period, Petersburg’s Radicalcontrolled oity government produced a
mumber of heretofore unknovwn benefits for African Americans living in the city. They provided
jobs, educational opportunities, and some health care. In 1868, the city created a school system
that inchuded four elementary schools for its black children. The school aystern was considersd
the best in the state, had one of the longest school years, and paid its male teachers the highest
salaries in the state. The African American community took full advantage of these new
educational opporiunities and by 1900, Hliteracy had fallen greatly among both heads of
households and children®

The beight of African American political power in both the city and the state came in the
1870s with the Radical government and in the 1880s with the Readjusters. During this period,
Petershurg's African Americans playved key reles in the state government, had new job
opportunities, and access to higher education with the founding of the Virginia Normal and
Collegiate Institute across the Appomattox River in Eftrick. The college was the result ofa
campaign promise to Virginia's African Americans by General William Mahone’s Readjuster
Party. In Governor Willlam E. Cameron's first address, be noted the importance of providing to
the state’s African American residents an avenue to high education. Both Mahone, who wasa
hero of the Battle of the Crater during the Petersburg siege, and Cameron were Petershurg men,
The college’s frst president was John Mercer Langston, a native Virgindan who was raised free in
Ohie, and who later was elected to Congress,

African American Institations also expanded during this perind.  African American
churches, long a mainstay of the community, flourished. Social orgamizations also sprang up
during the late pineteenth century. There were thirteen Masonic lodges and numerous other
organizations found increased support by the African American community, Denied access o the
city’s library, Hterary and Ubrary societies were formed. Militia companies and baseball teams
were constituted.™ This was a vibrant period in Petershurg’s African American compunity
although most continued to occupy the bottom of the economic ladder. Unfortunately, their hard
won political rights were significantly eroded beginning in the late 18905 and Petersburg™s
economic fortunes continued fo decline,

, African Americans Hved in the survey ares as early as the 1870s, if not earlier, particularly
along Jones Street. Between 1870 and 1890, African American home ownership increased 300
percent.” By 1913, when the city directories first began to Hst residents by street address as well
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as by name, almost all occupants of Jones Street, south of West Washington Street, were African
American while white residents lived on the adjacent street of Pine and the first block of South
Street south of Washington Street. Washington Street and evervthing north of Washington Strest
was occupied by white residents.

This area south of West Washington Street was part of Eureka which was bounded on the
north by West Washington Street, on the east by Gillfield and the existing Folly Castle Historic
District, on the south of by firgrounds, and on the west of the CSX railroad.” It developed as a
working class neighborhood in response to the mills and factories located north and east of this
area. By the time of the Civil War, there were a few free African American property owners on
Shepherd, Farmer and South streets.” Jones Street and the lower blocks of 8. South Street in the
extension area appears to have been the eastern edge of a larger African American commurity
that developed afer the war and extended west of Indiana Street. From the 1870s, this African
American community existed adiacent to the larger white community to the north and sast until
the entire extension area became predominately African American in the 1960s and 1970s when
“white flight” from the city was at its height due to school integration.

In religious affairs, it was also a time of repair and growth. Petersburg had an active
Jewish community. Rodef Sholem was formed in 1858 and met in a variety of places until a
synagogue was built on Union Street in 1876, In 1864, the congregation purchased land for a
cemetery adiacent to the Catholic cemetery in Blandford. In 1949, Rodef Bholem built a new
synagogue in Walnut Hill, a residential section of the city. The Brith Achim congregation, made
up of orthodox and conservative members was organized in 1908, They built a synagogue on
Market Street in 1915 which still stands but has been remodeled and is now used by the Salvation
Army. They also built a synagogue in Walmut HilL*

St. John's Episcopal Church, located in the survey area, stands on the southeast corner of
West Washington and Dunlop Streets and was an outgrowth of the Washington Street Mission
sponsored by Grace Church, The church was organized in 1867 and a frame chapel erected on
this site in 1868, Under the leadership of W.AR. Goodwin, whe would go on 1o fame in the
establishment of Colonial Williamsburg, the church grew and a new brick building was erected in
1897, Dr. Goodwin sent back to 5t John's an carly-nineteenth-century mahogany pulpit removed
from Burton Parish when it was restored to its colonial appearance in 1907, It still graces St
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Johr’s today.” A famous communicant of this church was the actor Joseph Cotton, a
Petersburg native, who was baptized here.

Between 1922 and 1928, the church purchased the adjacent two-story, brick house (123-
96-144) at 842 West Washington Street for use as its rectory.” This house was built about 1873
and was used as the rectory until the 1960s. It continues to be owned by the church but is now
used on special occasions and for storage. The church also purchased two double houses that
stood east of the rectory. They were demolished for a parking lot for the church. The old chapel
and 1880s house were demolished in the 19505 and a new Parish House was built in 1960.”

The second church in the survey area is the Reconciliation Fellowship Church (123-96-
113 Although this is a modern church, it stands on a lot cccupied by an earlier frame church
that had been built between 1897 and 1915, The 1915 Sanborn map labels it as the Christian
Church and by 1954 it was the Seventh Day Adventist Church.™

Most of the development in the survey area took place during this period. The 1877 map
continues to show open land in the northern and eastern sections of the survey area but several
more streets appear on this map. On the north, Commerce Street and Hinton Street (shown as
Pearl Street west of South Street) have been cut through, Hazel Street is also shown although
called New Street. The block bounded bv Commerce, Hazel, Hinton, and Jones streets, as well ag
blocks in the existing Folly Castle historic District, bad been part of Sarah Gill's estate that was
divided up into lots and platted in the 1870s. The 1877 Beers Map only shows one building, on
the northeast cormer of Hinton and Jones, on this tract.

WORLD WARITO WORLD WARII (1917-1945)

The entrance into World War I by the United States necessitated the construction of
military bases through the country t house, supply, and train soldiers for the war, In Prince
George County, Camp Lee opened in 1917 on approximately 8,000 acres of land.  Situated just
two miles away, 2,500 men were encamped there by August 1917 causing a boom in Petersburg
particularly for its retail merchants. The establishment of several war-related industries in nearby
Hopewell also contributed to the increased commerce in the Petersburg area during this period,
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With the end of the war, bowever, all these facilities closed rapidly leaving Petersburg merchants
with overstocked shelves. ‘

Although Camp Lee was closed after the war, the land was used by the State as a game
refuge. Some of it was parceled out to the National Park Service for the Battlefield Park and to
the Department of Justice for 3 federal reformatory,  After the United States entry into World
War 11, the camp was reactivated in January 1941, During the war #t served as a reception center
for new troops as well as a center for the Quartermaster Corps.  After World War 1, its name
was changed to Fort Lee and if became g permanent military institution.

For years after the Civil War, people had come to Petersburg to visit the battlefields that
had played so prominent a role in the eastern theater in the last year of the war. Of particular
interest to the tourists was the Crater, the site of the explesion in an underground mine by Union
troops.  1he establishment in 1926 of the Petersburg National Military Park was the formal
beginning of the tourist industry in Petersburg.

There was also change in the manufacturing sector of Petershurg during this peried. In
1930, the British American Tobacco Company, the largest emplover and taxpayer in the ares,
closed. Fortumately, the Brown and Williamson Tobacco Corp. took over the plant m 1932, In
the survey area the Stuart-Keith & Company building was constructed in the first quarter of the
twentieth century. In 1923, it was a shirt factory but in later years, pants were also manufactured
here.” Located on the northeast corner of Pine and Brown Streets, it is a three story, brick
building with large metal windows. The main bleck is thres by nine bays with a one story, three-
bay addition on the east side. The factory is now vacant.

The city continued 1o expand educational opportunities for the children of its residents.
The Robert E. Lee Elementary School (123-96-115), located in the survey area, was built in 1811
and named for Confederate General Robert E. Lee who spent much of the last year of the Civil
War in Petersburg. A massive two-story portico supported by two sets of three clustered
Corinthian columns on conerete piers dominates the facade of the Neo-Classical Revival style
building.

The Petersburg High School, built 1917-1918, iz located in the existing Folly Castle
Historic District but was surveved at the intensive level as a part of this project. The frst
Petersburg public high school was initially housed in the Classical Institute building on
Union Avenue but moved in 1911 to the Anderson Seminary building on West Washington Sireet.
The large brick, Gothic Revival-style building was overcrowded by 1916 and the City Council
appropriated $140,000 for the construction of a new high school

The Petersburg High School was designed in 1916 by architect Finlay Forbes Ferguson,
8r. of the Norfolk, Virginia firm of Ferguson, Calrow and Wrenn. Ferguson, a native of Norfolk,

"Sanborn Map Co.



studied architecture at the Massachuseits Institute of Technology and began his architectural
practice about 1890 in his native city. By 1904, he had formed a partnership with Charles J.
Calrow and in 1916, Harold H, Wrenn joined the firm. This partnership was later dissolved and
by 1917, Ferguson was g partner of John K. Peebles, a Petersburg native, which continued
through 1934, Fergusen and his partners designed a variety of buildings including residences,
banks, hotels, fire houses, stores, churches, and schools mostly in the Tidewater area but they also
designed Peabody Hall at the University of Virginia.” It is thought they designed one other
building in Petersburg, possibly a school.”  Harwood & Moss of Newport News was awarded
the contract for general contractor and the school was constructed in 1917-1918." The metal
cornice was fashioned by J. M. Davis & Company, a local roofing and sheet metal company.”
When completed, the final cost for the new school was $171,000.7

Before the school served as an education facility, it was pressed into service as a hospital
during the influenza epidemic and did not open as a school until 1919, The auditorium was not
built until the new high school was occupied and the old Anderson Seminary building, located on
the front section of the lot, was vacated and demolished.” The auditorium was completed during
the spring term of 1919 and had a seating capacity of 1100.%

THE NEW DOMINION (1943-PRESENT)

The end of World War II did not bring the drastic downsizing in nearby military and
industrial facilities that had occurred at the end of World War 1. Fort Lee continued to grow and
modern brick buildings replaced the temporary, war-time, wooden structures. The base has
continued to play a major role in the B of the Petersburg area. The Bartlefield Park continued o
attract tourists and the City of Petersburg opened a number of musenn and historic buildings
further entice tourists.

#lohn E. Wells and Robert E. Dalton, The Virginia drchitects, 1835-1953, (Richmeond:
Mew South Architectural Press, 1997}, p. 140,

* Anonvmous, “Propesal for the Adaptive Reuse of the 0ld Petersburg High School,”
{Petersburg: City of Petersburg, n.d. ).

*Ann Gilliam, ed., The Missle, (Petersburg: Petersburg High School, June 1919}, p. 7.
“Farber Davis, personal communication, 23 April 1993,

“Gilliam, p. 7.

* Anonymous, Appomattox Educational Foundation, n.d. (Typewritten),

¥Gilliam, p. 30, 14,
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Public education in Petersburg during this period underwent a number of changes - the
fargest being racial integration. By the 1938-39 school vear, Petersburg had six white elementary
schools, one junior high school, and one high school with 2,688 elementary students and 512
students in the high school. There were three African American elementary schools with a new
one under construction, one upper elementary school, and one senior high school. There were
3,112 African American elementary students and 361 high schoo! students.® A dual, racially
segregated school system was maintained until 1970,

In the survey area, the Robert E. Lee Elementary School was closed inthe 19605 as an
slementary school but was used by the nearby high school for its expanding vocational program
until that school moved to new quarters. During that period, a modern brick building was
constructed behind the school and served as a machine shop for the high school In 1969, a new
vocgtional building associated with the high school was opened on Pine Street in the survey area.
It was named for LB. Pitiman, g long time advoeate of vocational education.™  The 1970 brought
school integration to Petersburg and the Petersburg High School became the only high schoolin
the city. Crowding increased and the 1972 annexation of parts of Prince George and Dipwiddie
Counties added 1o the population at the school. Mobile classrooms were placed in front ofand on
the east and west sides of the school. A new city high school opened in 1973 and the old one was
vacant for a vear. In 1974, it reopened as a middle school housing all the 7* grade students in the
city. By 1979, it was again vacant. Classes for alternative education later occupied the
gymnasium annex but had lefl by 1986, The school has been vacant since that time. A number of
alternative uses have been proposed for the buikling, such as a community and resource center,
but none have succesded. An ambitious plan is now underway to rehabilitate the school for use as
a Governor's School.

In the 19505 and 1960s, as a result of voning and school integration many of Petersburg’s
white residents moved to the Walnut Hill East area and across the Appomattox River to Colonial
Heights. The west end of the ¢ity became predominately black neighborhoods.® Like other areas
i western Petersburg, the survey area underwent these same changes and became predominately
African-American during this period.

EXISTING DOCUMENTATION FOR SURVEY AREA
During the summer of 1973, Jeffery M. O'Diell surveyed many of the properties inchuded

ins this survey. Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission (VHLC), Architectural-Historic
fnventory Card forms were used and the original of these forms are on file in the Department of

¥Scott and Wyatt, p. 267
¥ Anonymous, Appomatiox Fducational Foundation, n.d. (Typewritten)

¥Bushey, p. 39



Planning and Community Development for the City of Petersburg. Duplicate copies of these files
could not be located in the Archives of the VDHR and #t is believed no file numbers were ever
assigned by VHLC. Other than these files, no documentation of buildings within the survey area
exists. There are no buildings within the survey area that are individually listed on the NRHP or
the Virgma Landmarks Register (VLR



CHAPTER II RESEARCH DESIGK

PROJECT OBIECTIVES

The objective of this project was to document and evaluate resources in a roughly sixteen
block area of Petersburg in order to determine if this area would qualify for inclusion in the
existing Folly Castle Historic District by increasing the boundaries for that district and to prepare
a Mational Register of Historic Places registration form for the boundary increase. In addition,
the survey would provide up-to-date information on the buildings in this area for both the City of
Petersburg and the VDHR to facilitate the recognition and protection of architectural resources in
this area of the city, This survey enabled the City of Petersburg to move forward with
accomplishing its long range goal of completely surveying all historic and cultural resources
within the City inside or outside present historic district boundaries and incorporating eligible
properties within historic districts. The completion of a Preliminary Information Form for the oid
Petersburg High School as a first step toward individually listing this building on the National
Register and Virginia Landmarks Register was also a part of this project. The school is already in
the existing Folly Castle Historic District. The preparation of a scripted slide show that depicts
the proposed Folly Castle Historic District expansion area and its significance and that would be
suitable for use by public bodies and various historical, educational, and civic groups was also a
goal of this project.

PROJECT METHODS

All resources within the project area were surveved and the survey report was prepared
according to the 1.8, National Park Service guidelines and standards as outlined in Bulletin 24.
Guidelines for Lacal Surveys: A Basis for Preservation Planning (Derry et al. 1977) and Bulletin
164 Guidelines for Completing National Register of Historic Places Forms {MeClelland and
Charleton 19911, and “How to Use Historie Contexts in Virginia: A Guide for Survey,
Registration, Protection, and Treatment Projects” (VDHR 1992), “Guidelines for Preparing
Architectural Survey Reports for the Virginia Department of Historlc Resources” (VDHR March
19953, and “Historic Context Guidelines for Preparing Cultural Resource Survey Reports”™ (Kern
1997). One hundred thirty-three properties were recorded at the reconnaissance level with a
detailed physical description of the primary and a brief description of all secondary resources for
each property. Also included was a brief evaluation of the property placing it in its local historical
and architectural cortext. In addition, four properties were recorded at the intensive level. This
required a more detailed physical description and evaluation and well as in depth historical
research to more fully explore the development of the property and it significance. All surveyed
data was entered into the IPS format and IPS forms were produced for zach property. All
properties were assigned a VDHR architectural inventory mumber. Each property was
photographed using black and white film. All photographs were labeled the file number, negative
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number, date, photographer, location, description of resource. A site plan for sach property was
also produced.

Historical and archival research focused on developing the historic context for the survey
area to provide a framework for the evahuation of the resources. Research concentrated on the
development of this area and the role it played in Petersburg’s history from its earliest beginnings
to the present day. A series of research questions were developed to guide the research and
determine how this area fits within the larger story of Petersburg. These questions included the
following: what role did this area play in the development of Petersburg from its earliest
beginnings to the present day?, what types of activities occurred here (residential, commercial,
industrialy?, what kinds of people lived here?, what were their cccupations, and what was their
socio/economic status?

In order to answer the questions posed above, a number of archival institutions and both
primary and secondary resources were consulted.  Research was conducted at the Virginia
Department of Historic Resources, the Library of Virginia, the Virgina Historical Society, the
Petershurg City Library, the Petersburg Courthouse, the Petersburg Plarming Department, and
Petershurg High School. Primary resources concentrated primarily on deed book, land tax books,
and maps. Maps consulted included Civil War era maps, the Beers Map, and the Sanborn Maps
for Petersburg. Secondary resources included written histories of Petersburg, church histories,
and papers written on various aspects of the city. Oral history was also conducted where
warranted.

EXPECTED RESULTS

Rased on information provided by the Planming Department of the City of Petersburg, the
VIDHR, and an initial observations of the survey area, it was anticipated that the survey would
identify and evaluate mostly residential properties and to a lesser degree properties that fall under
commercial, industrial, educational, and refigious themes. 1t was thought that this likely would be
a working class neighborhood and that, like elsewhere in the city, residential, commereial, and
industrial uses would be located in close proximity 1o each other. Because of its distance from the
early core area of Petersburg, it was further anticipated that although there would probably be
buildings constructed before the Civil War in the survey area, most of the buildings would date
from the late-nineteenth or early-twentieth centuries. From a drive through of the survey area and
from the general economic history of the City of Petersburg in the late-twentieth century, it was
anticipated that this area had undergone a number of changes in the last several decades both in
relation to the condition of the resources and the sociv/economic status of its residents. It was
alse expected that the survey would produce defensible boundaries for an extension o the
existing Folly Castle Historic Distriet.



CHAPTER IV, SUMMARY OF SURVEY FINDINGS

INTRODUCTION

The architectural survey of properties located with the proposed boundaries of the Folly
Castle Historic District houndary increase identified 136 properties. Of this number, 120 were
considered contributing resources and 16 were non-contributing. The contributing surveved
resources mcluded 109 dwellings, one school, one church, two factories, and seven commercial
buildings. All properties were recorded on reconnaissance-level IPS forms. Indices for the
surveved properties can be found in Appendix C.

The survey area for the Folly Castle Historic District second boundary increase is located
sputhwest of the original commercial and residential beart of the city and west of the existing
Folly Castle Historic District (Figure 2). Tt comprises a twelve block area that represents a late
nineteenth-early twentieth century neighborhood typical of Petersburg. The second boundary
increase, like the existing district, is an whan, predominantly residential avea of fairly high density
but it also includes a former elementary school, a churches, several commercial buildings, and two
factories. The overwhebning majority of the houses in the extension area are frame and many
have fittle stylistic detalling. The larger, more stylish houses, in Italianate, Queen Anne, and
Colonial Revival styles, are located on Washington Street the major thoroughfare in both this and
the existing Folly Castle Historic District. A commercial node that developed in the 19303 and
1940s in this neighborhood is also located on West Washington Street. The cross streets in the
extension area, particularly south of Washington Street, represent a more working class
neighborhood. Some of the oldest dwellings in the boundary ncrease are found on these streets.
The buildings in the increase area are sited on medium to small size lots, many of which are
fenced. Like other arcas of Petersburg, the neighborhood has evelved over the vears resulting in
some changes to the historic fabric of the buildings. The most predominant is the use of synthetic
siding such as bricktex, aluminum, and vinyl. In some instances, original details on porches have
been lost or replaced. Modern infill largely consists of modern brick and frame ranch-type
dwellings. Overall, the proposed boundary increase retains an architectural integrity common 1o
the city of Petersburg as a whole.

DOMESTIC RESOURCES

The survey area represents a middle and working class residential area with dwellings
dating from the second quarter of the nineteenth century to the 19705 and 1980s.  Although there
are & number of pre-Civil War domestic structures, the majority were budlt in the two decades
before and after the turn-of-the-century. The most stylish of these, represented by the Queen
Anne and lalianate styles in the nineteenth century and the Colonial Revival style in the twentieth
century, are located on Washington Street, a major thoroughfare through Petersburg (Plate 1)
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Mlate 1. West Washington Street {(123-088-0141).
One of the mors stylish houses on West Washington Street.

Plate 2. Dy, Couch House {123-096-0138).

Plate 3. italian Villa-inspired dweliing (123-098-015%) on Pine Sireet,




The north/south streets of Pine, Jones, and South are representative of working class residential
neighborhoods m Petersburg. The carliest dwellings in the survey area are found on these blocks.
These houses generally are devoid of ornamentation with the exception of turned porch posts or
bracketed cornices. They present a solid, sturdy, no nonsense face to the world,

One of the earliest houses on Washington Street in the survey area is the Couch House
(123-096-0138) located on the southwest corner of Washington and South streets (Plate 2). It
was built in the late 1850s by D, Charles Couch who laid out the rest of this block between
Washington and Wythe streets. Constructed of pressed brick, the two-story, three-bay, gable-
roof house originally had a side-passage, double-pile plan. The house was expanded in late
nineteenth century with a two-bay addition to the east end with a character more in keeping with
a row house than the original detached dwelling, One of #ts early, if not original, dependencies
survives to the rear of the house but is now a separate property. Originally the one-story, brick
building {123-096-0217) may bave been a carriage house/office or kitchen bul In later vears it was
used a3 3 cabinet shop,

A house unique in the survey area is located at 20 Pine Street (123-096-0159) (Plate 3).
Built about 1853, this Itallan Villa-inspired dwelling in the only house of this style in the proposed
expansion area and, according to a 1975 city survey, the only one in the city. The 1877 Beers
Map of Petersburg, however, indicated that its twin originally stood next door. Clad with board
and batten siding, it has deep eaves, a central brick chimney, and a cruciform plan. The wrap-
around porch may be a late-nineteenth century addition,

Jones Street, formerly Jones Road, is one of the oldest roads in the survey area and the
oldest surviving houses are found along this sireet, Jones Street also appears to represent an
African-American neighborhood from the period immediately afer the Civil War to the present.
The houses along Jones Street are more vernacular in nature and almost universally of frame
construction. There are several frame houses on the east side of Jones Street in the 200 block
with side-passage plans and exterior-end chimneys which are unusual in this area. These include
123-096-175, 176, and 178. They are two-story, two- or three-bay frame dwellings that date from
the second and third quarters of the nineteenth century and appear to be the oldest dwellings in
the expansion area. The one-story, center chimmey house at 231 Jones Street (123-096-179) is
atypical for this area and s the only one of its kind in the extension arca. Built sbout 1860, it
represents a type of worker's cottage more commonly found in other areas of Petersburg.  Jones
Street also boasts the only shotgun-type housing in the area at 105 Jones Street (123-096-0171),
This diminutive, two-bay house features cornice returns on the gable-end roof. The shotgun plan
is closely associated with African-American settlements in the south.®

There are a variety of building types in the survey ares although three in particular stand
out; the double house, the one-story, three-bay, hip-roof cottage, and the very small, one story

H(Gabrielle M. Lanier and Bernard L. Herman, Everyday Architecture of the Mid-Atlantic.
{Baltimore: Johns Hopkins University Press, 1997, p. 45,
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house. The double house is the most numercus of these three types. The double house consists
of fwo side-passage, double-pile plan housing units placed side by side into a single building.

The double house, also called the double tenement in Petersburg, s an important house
type in the city and in the survey area (Plate 4). Twenty-four were identified. Thev are found on
most stzeets in the extension area with South, Jones, and Pine streets having the largest number.
Only two were found on Washington Street. According to Sanborn maps, the area just south of
the extension area once had numerous double houses that were demolished during urban renewal
m the early 1570s. Built of both brick and frame in the survey aren. they have a variety of
decorative detailing or they can be very plain. They also vary in the placement of the interior
passage from the gable ends of the house to the center of the house. Double houses with center
passages have end-wall chimneys while those with passages on each end of the building share
center chimneys.

The largest and most ornate of the doubles in the survey area stands on the southeast
cormner of Jones and Washington (123-096-0134) on the site of a tobacco factory that served as a
hospital during the Civil War (Plate 5}, Built in the late 1870s of brick, # features central doors
sheltered by a canopy supported by large, triangular brackets, two-story box bay windows on the
front, a beavy, bracketed cornice, and interior-end chimneys on sach gable end.

One with Victorian characteristics is located at 32-34 Pine Sirest {123-096-0160).
Unique in the expansion area because of #s entry, the two, two-bay units share a three-sided
central projecting bay with entrances located in the sides of the projecting bav. There are also
projecting bays on each end of the building. Each unit has an individual two-bay porch with
turned posts and decorative brackets. The double house at 28-30 S. South Street (123-096-219)
has twin, two-bay, hip-roof porches. There i3 a cluster of four double houses on Wythe Street
just east of Pine Street. These include 123-096-0150, 0151, and 0152, Although there have been
alterations such as synthetic siding and replacement windows, they appear to be almost idenrical
with a four-bay facade, central doors, and bracketed cornice.

Five of the one-story, three-bay, hip-roofed cottages are found in the extension area. A
cluster of three are found on Hinton and North South streets (123-096-0106, 107, and 196). The
other two are located on South Jones and Bouth South streets. All appear to have been built in
the last half of the nineteenth century., The house at 19 North South Street (123-096-0196) is the
best preserved and features weatherboard siding with corner boards, a hip roof with two interior
axial chimneys and a nicely detailed tree-bay front porch with Tuscan columns and turned
balusters (Plate 6). The two on Hinton Street (123-096-0106 and 107} are similar with six-over-
six light double-hung sash windows,

Sprinkled throughout the extension area, are several very small one-story, two-or three-
bay, frame dwellings. One of the carliest, which appears to bave been standing in the 1870s, is
located at 640 Lumsden Street (123-096-0238). The original two-bay section has a steeply
pitched gable roof and exterior-end brick chimmey, 722 Commerce Street {123-096-0235) is
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Plate 4. Double House (123-096-0222) on South South Stract,

Plai 5. Double House (123-096-0134) on comer of
West Washington Sireet ang Jones Strest,

lad
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Plate 8. Example of the hipped-roof cotlage in survey ares.
This house (23088 Y1O8Y is lonstad on North Srnasth Seant



unique among these small houses in that it has a hip roof with almost center chimney. The two
houses at 634 Lawrence Street (123-096-0147) and 211 South South Street (123-096-0209) are
very sirmilar and may represent dwellings built by African Americans as they moved into the
extension area 1 the late nineteenth century. Both of these houses have low-pitched, side-gable
roofs, three-over-one light windows, and two-bay front porches. By far, the smallest of these
diminutive dwellings is located at 212 Jones Street {123-096-0189). It iz two bays wide with a
“catshde” gable roof, interior brick chimmey, and a one-bay front porch,

EDUCATIONAL RESOQURCES

Two educational buildings were surveved for this project. Although the old Petersburg
High School in not located within the boundaries of the survey area, its documentation at the
intensive level was a part of this project and is discussed here. There is one contributing school in
the extension area and the non-contributing modern industrial education annex to the old
Petersburg High School. The Neo-Classival Revival-style Robert E. Lee Elementary School (123-
096-0115) is prominently located on the north side of West Washington Street about a block fom
the high school. Built in 1911, it is a symmetrical, five-bay wide, H-shaped building. Clad in
buff-colored bricks, a massive two-story portico supported by two sets of three-clustered cast-
iron Corinthian columns dominates the facade (Plate 7). The high school, built about six years
later, continued the tone of monumental architecture for educational buildings in Petersburg set by
the R.E. Lee School (Plate 8). The half drum of the auditorium dominates the five-part facade of
the school. Twin porticos, each with a pair of Corinthian columns in the “Tower of the Winds”
order, flank the auditorium. The high school annex (123-096-0136) i3 2 one-story brick building
with narrow windows was built in 1969 1 house the industrial arts departiments,

RELIGIOUS RESOURCES

Like the schools, there are two churches in the extension area, one contributing and one
nop-contributing. S Joln's Episcopal Church (123-096-0143) anchors the western end of the
extension area at the comner of West Washington Street and Dunlop Street. Built in 1897 10
replace an sarlier church in this location, the Romanesque Revival, cruciforme-plan, brick
structure, features buttresses, a patterned slate gable roof on the main structure and 3 tall, five-
stage corner tower. St John's 13 3 contributing resource for the district, The Reconcibation
Fellowship Church (123-096-0113) at 621 West Washington Street is o modern brick church that
staruds on the site of an earlier church and s 3 non-contributing resource.

COMMERCIAL RESOURCES

West Washington Street hosts a small commercial area, mostly on the north side of the
700 block, The commercial building at 647 West Washington Street (123-096-0117), built in the
1930s or 1940s, probably as a grocery store, is a one story brick building with Colonial Revival-
style details such as the concrete quoining. Next door i a one-story, gable-end entry, brick
building (123-096-0118) which was constructed shout the same time and like the grocery store
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Piaie 7. Meo-Classical Hevival portico on the
Rabert E. Lee Elementary School (123-096-0118).

Plate 8. Petersburg High Schogd (123
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features revival-style detailing. The stucco in the gable end is suggestive of the Tudor Revival
style. The commercial building at the corner of West Washington Street and North South Street
{123-096-0120), also of the same period, is even more emphatic in s use of the Tudor Revival
style with the half-timbering in the gables. The commercial building on the south side of West
Washington at South Jones Strest was a restaurant in the late 1930s. Its interesting mission-style
parapet continues the use of revival styles for commercial buildings in this area.

There is one service station which is a contributing resource in the commercial node of the
extension area. The station at 721 West Washington Street (123-096-0119) 15 typical of many
built in the 19405 with its smooth metal cladding and three-ribbed horizontal band around the
cornice. It is the only example of Art Deco commercial architecture in the district.

INDUSTRIAL RESOURCES

The twe factories in the extension ares are located at opposite ends of the district. They
are typical of many factories in Petersburg in that they are (or were) situated In residential
neighborhoods. (The residential areas south of the Stuart-Keith factory were demolished during
urban renewal in the 15703 and the land remains open and unoccupied.) The older of the two
factories, the Seidenburg & Company Cigar Factory (123-096-0241), is located at the comer of
South and Hinton Streets and was built in about 1906 as a cigar factory. It is a three-story brick
building that occupies almost the entire end of the block. A one-story tower with recessed arches
tops the slightly projecting entry bay and the entire building features corbeling at the cornice level.
The multiple, arched windows have been enclosed with concrete block. The Stuart-Keith shirt
factory (123-096-0240), located at the corner of Brown and Pines streets, is of more recent
vintage. Built about 1920, it alse is a three-story brick building with an industrial design. Tts main
feature is its rectangular-shaped, multi-paned windows with concrete lntels. Both factories have
flat roofs and sit immediately adjacent to the sidewalk.

THREATS TO RESOURCES

The greatest threat o the resources of the survey area is deferred maintenance and disuse
of the buildings. During the course of the survey fleldwork, several of the properties documented
were obvicusly vacant, in disrepair, and threatened with vandalism, demolition, or other
destructive activities. Other threats 1o the resources include the addition of synthetic sidings,
replacement windows and alteration of historic-period porches.
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CHAPTER V. EVALUATION OF RESOURCES

All resources were evaluated for its significance according o one or more of the historic
themes as a representative or exemplary example of its type, according to ity ability to meet the
criteria established for the Virginia Landmarks Register and the National Register of Historic
Places, and for its physical integriry,

CRITERIA FOR THE VIRGINIA LANDMARKS REGISTER

The Commonwealth of Virginia has established the following criteria for the Virginia
Landmarks Register:

No structure or site shall be deemed {0 be a historic one unless it has been prominently
wentified with, or best represents, some major aspect of the cultural, political, evonomic,
military, or social history of the State of nation, ot has had a relationship with the life of an
historic personage or event representing some major aspect of, or ideals related 1o, the
history of the State or nation. In the case of structwres which are to be so designated, they
shall embody the principal or umique features of an architectural style or demonstrate the
stvle of a period of our history or method of construction, or serve as an ilustration of the
work of a master builder, designer or architect whose genius influenced the period in
which he worked or has significance in current times. In order for a site to qualify as an
archaeclogival site, it shall be an area from which R is reasonable 1o expect that artifacts,
materials, and other specimens may be found which give insight 1o an understanding of
aboriginal man or the Colonial and early history and architecture of the State of nation.

CRITERIA FOR THE NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

The National Register of Historic Places lists properties that possess quality of sigmificance
i American history, architecture, archagology, engineering, and culfure that is present in districts,
sites, buildings, structures, and objects that possess integrity of location, design, setting, materials,
workmanship, feel, and association, and

A That are associated with events that have made a significant contribution o the
bread patterns of our history; or

B That are associsted with the lives of persons significant in our past; or

£ That embody the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of
construction, or that represent the work of 2 master, or that possess high artistic
values, or that represent a significant and distinguishable entity whose components
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may lack individual distinction; or
D That have yielded, or may be likely to vield, information fmportant in prehistory or
history,

In addition to meeting the criteria of both the Virginia and National registers, properties
must also retain integrity to be eligible for listing. A property must be able to convey its
significance by retaining its character defining features that tell the story of its importance.

Offictal designation by the Virginia Landmarks Register and National Register
acknowledges the cultural and architectural significance of a resource, or group of resources ina
historic district, and brings them to the attention of the local community, the state, and the nation.
1t is hoped that this increased public awareness will stimulate other community efforts to protect
the historic and natural features of the area.

Listing on the Virginia or Mational Registers in no way restricts the owner’s use of his or
her property in any way as long as private, non-federal finds are used. 1t does not restrict the
subdivision or sale of the property nor does it prevent the demolition of structure or structures on
the property.

EVALUATION OF SL?RVE? AREA

Based on the architectural survey and historical research completed for this project. it is
recommended that the Folly Castle Historie District boundaries be expanded to include the survey
area. It s recommended that the Folly Castle Historic District boundary increase is significant
under Criterion A for its local history as a neighborhood that became home to a community of
African Americans who wers making the transition after the Civil War from slave to economically
independent free men and women, The area also is significant under Criterion C for its local
architecture with the variety of its housing that ranges in styles and types from the large and
stylish Queen Ann and Colonial Revival-style dwellings found along West Washington Street to
the double houses and small worker’s cottages found on the cross streets. Alse found in the
boundary increase area are buildings that represent religious, educational, commercial, and
industrial themes in Petershurg.

Four properties were surveyed at the intensive level for this project: Petersburg High
School, Robert E. Lee Elementary School, St John's Episcopal Church, and the Couch House,
A Preliminary Information Form was prepared for Petersburg High School to be individually
tisted on the Mational Register although it is already a contributing resource within the boundaries
of the existing Folly Castle Historic District.  The other thee properties would be included as
contributing resources with in the proposed boundary increase for the Folly Castle Historic
District.  The inclusion of these resources within the historic district appears to be the best way to
manage them. In the case of the two schools, it is recommended that they would be contributing
resources for a multiple property documentation nomination for all eligible public schools In
Petersburg.
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CHAPTER V1. RECOMMENDATIONS

Cme of the stated goals of the City of Petersburg, is the documentation and evaluation of
all of its historic resources. Towards that end, there are several areas adjacent to or near the Folly
Castle extension as well as other areas in the city that warrant survey as potential historic districts.
These areas, with a variety of resources, help tell the story of Petersburg.

Immediately west of the survey area is an area known as Pride’s Field thet initially was
taid out about 1810, This aren 5 3 good candidate for survey as a possible Pride’s Field Historic
District. It extended from Brick House Run on the south to McKenzie Strest on the north and
from South Street on the east to West Street on the west, This was primarily g residential
development but like other areas of Petersburg had commercial and industrial buildings as well. If
a survey and nomination of the entire Pride’s Field is impracticable from an economic standpoint,
then this large area could be divided into the smaller components of the Upper Appomattox
Canal. West High Strest/Battersea neighborhood, and the remainder of Pride’s Field.

Either separately or as part of a Pride’s Field survey, the Upper Appomattox Canal should
ke surveyed with the ultimate goal of registration. The canal plaved a significant transportation
role in the commercial and industrial development of not only Petersburg but the region.

Although the canal no longer exists, #s bed can be readily be discerned and it deserves
recognition. The West High Street/Batterses neighborhood, located north of the Upper
Appormattox Canal, is another area that originally was a part of Pride’s Field but could stand alone
and be surveved separately from the larger Pride’s Fleld area. This area is already a local historic
district.

Just east and southeast of the present survey area stand a number of large factories some
of which are now vacant. These buildings which plaved such a vital role in the history of
Petersburg should be surveyed. Historically, Petersburg was an important industrial center in the
region and state and these buildings are representatives of the latter stages of industrial
development in Petersburg., These factories are located in close proximity to one another and 1t
may be possible 1o develop an industry-hased historic district or g Multiple Property Submission.

As a part of this project, the old Petersburg High School and the Robert E. Lee
Elementary School, both vacant, were surveved. There are a number of other schools in the oity
that deserve survey and evaluation for eligibility to the National Register. It is recommended that
the City of Petersburg consider a Multiple Property Subpussion for current and/or former city
schools similar to thet prepared for the Richmond public schools.

Several residential areas in Petersburg should be surveved for potential historic districts.
One possibality is Liberty Strest. Another is the residential area south of Anna Belling Junior
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High School and west of Sycamore street, just southwest of the existing Poplar Lawn Historic
District. This district would be in lieu of expanding the existing Poplar Lawn District,
Blandford, which began as a town independent of Petersburg, is another area of Petersburg
deserving of survey a5 a potential district. Blandford Cemetery, a city owned cemetery which is
individually listed on the National Register, is located in the Blandford area and has been the
public cemetery since 1819, Immediately adjacent to this cemetery are seven other cemeteries
including a Catholic, two Jewish, and four Aftican American cemeteries all of which deserve
further study and documentation. Instead of nominating each of the cemeteries individually,
thought should be given to creating a historic distrivt that would include all of the cemeterics.

The project area is characterized by concentrations of buildings in need of repair and/or
rehabilitation. Many of the houses are not owner-occupied but are rental properties. Once this
area is incorporated in national and state historic districts, it will become eligible for federal and
state Historic Preservation Tax Credits. Petersburg is also a Certified Local Government (CLG)
and is eligible for grants and technical assistance from the Virginia Department of Historic
Resources and the National Park Service, Education efforts in this area should focus on
familiarizing property owners about the availability of all of these aspects of preservation in
Petersburg but most specifically on tax credits, both national and state, to encourage rehabilitation
of the buildings in the district. Information or possibly workshops on appropriate materials and
repair techniques for smaller home repairs should be made available to all residents.

The city and existing civic associations should familiarize residents of the expanded districr
area with other organizations that may be able to provide help to them. These include the
following:

City of Petersburg, Planning Department and Architectural Review Board
Historic Petersbury Foundation

Folly Castle Citizen's Organization

Virginia Department of Historic Resowrces - Capital Regional and Main Office

Building on the slide presentation developed with this project, other initiatives focused on
the history of the area could be encouraged. An oral history program, possibly coordinated with
the school system or Virginia State University, is one avenue to explore. Not only would
residents learn more about thelr cormmunity’s past, such a program may encourage greater
participation in community activities and rehabilitation of properties.
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X TMENT OF HISTORIC ]

2801 Kensington Avenue
Richmond, Virginia 23221

PRELIMINARY INFORMATION FORM

Individual Property

The following constitutes an application for preliminary consideration of eligibility for the nomination
potential of a property to the Virginia Landmarks Register and the National Register of Historic Places.
This does not mean that a property is being nominated to the registers at this time. Rather it is being
evaluated to determine if it qualifies for such listings. Applicants will be notified of the staff and the
Board's actions in writing following the meeting.

Please type and use 8 4" X 11" paper, if additional space is needed.

All submitted materials become the property of Virginia Department of Historic Rescurces and cannot
be returned.

1. HISTORIC NAME OF PROPERTY (if not known, use current name or address):

_ Petershurg High School

b3

LOCATION: Street or Route: 512 West Washington Street

County or City Petersburg, Virginia

LEGAL OWNER(S) OF PROPERTY: (Include names and addresses of ALL owners and
adjacent owners.) *SEE NOTE.

b
N

br., Mrs, Miss, Ms. (Circle One)

Firm and/or Address: __Appomattox Educational Foundation

PO Box 727

City / State/ Zip Code:_ Petersburg, Virginia 23834-0727

Baytime Telephone:  Area Code ( 8043526 - 0820

OWHNER'S SIGNATURE: DATE:

* » Signature required for processing all applications. « «
in the event of corporate ownership you must provide the name of the appropriste contact person,

Contact person:

Daytime Telephone:  Area Code ( } -



4, GENERAL DATA:

A. Type of property:__School

B. Date(s) of resource(s) amd source:
1917-1918 _ City Recornds

C. Outbuildings: Yes X No_ if ves, mumber of outbuildings 1

D. Approximate acreage:  7.36

E. Architect, carpenter or mason (if known): Finlay Forbes Ferguson, Sr.

F. Original Use: School

G. Present Use: Yacant

5. GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

Describe architectural features, additions, remodelings and any alterations to the property.
Description should alse address setting and any designed landscape features. Additional
information may be submitted on typed, consecutively numbered 8 14" x 11" shests, as
NECeSSary.

The imposing Petersburg High School Building with its monumental facade was hailed as one of
Virginia's most handsome high school buildings when i was built.! Built in 1918, &t stands on g 7.36-
«cre tract of land on West Washington Street, Petersburg’s main east/west sireet. The building is sited
back from the street on a slight rise with a grassy lawn in front. The school lot is bounded on the north
by West Washington Sirest, on the east by Guarantee Street, on the south by Wythe Street, and on the
west by Brick House Run. Also on the school property s the only surviving dwelling on the west side
of Guarantee Strest, as well as two, one-story frame buildings that housed classrooms, a one-story frame
building, a long, one-story concrete-block building, and a pole shed. Of the latter buildings, all but the
dwelling will be removed during the renovation of the high school.

The Neo-Classical Revival-style school is three-stories on a raised basement and is constructed of
yellow pressed brick laid in common bond. The semicircular auditorium dominates the five-part facade
and is flanked by a pair of skylit porticos in antis which shelter the two front entries. Both the two-story
auditorium pilasters, which separate each window bay, and the massive portico columns are Corinthian
in the “Tower of the Winds” order that is also found on the Petersburg Courthouse. Massive granite
steps provide access to each portico. Other decorative features include molded terra cotta tile door
enframements at both the front and side entrances with the words “Petersburg High School” over the
front entries. Windowless, paneled brick pavilions anchor each end of the facade. A watertable,
beltcourse, denticulated modillioned comice of pressed metal, and cast “compo” architrave and frieze
unify the building. Al original windows, except for the gymmasiom, have been removed from the
building.

The gympasium building, situated behind the main structure, was constructed in 19391940 also of
vellow brick. The large, ﬁched steel gymnasivm windows are the defining feature of this section and
e divided by pilasters topped with cast stone ornament. The mmain entrances to the gymnasium are on

"Mary Harding Sadler, Historic Preservation Certification Application-Part 1, Petersburg High School
Building.



the west end of the gym in the hyphen which connects this section with the main building. simple
hoods shelter the secondary exterior entrances on the east end which are reached by metal stairs. The
east entrance into the lower level of these section features fluted pilasters surmounted by a denticulated
segmental arch,

In contrast to ifs impressive exterior, the interior of the high school is understated. The hallways have
plagter walls with picture molding and concrete floors that later were covered with tile. The stairs in the
main section have simple metal pipe handrails. Classrooms feature plaster walls, also with picture
molding, wooden floors, and chalkboards along two or three of the walls and a chair rail on walls
without boards. Transoms top all classroom doors and mest classrooms have an inset cabinet with glass
doors above and paneled doors below. In contrast, the hallways of the gymnasium section have plaster
walls above a glazed tile wainscot. The stairs here feature cast ron newels with plain metal halusters.

The auditorium is the major interior space in the main block of the school. The semicircular space with
sloping floor has a balcony supported by metal columns. The balcony balustrade is plaster with wooden
molding at the top and bottom. A fire in 1966 destroyed the auditorium interior and the rebuilt stage
appears 1o project further into the seating area than the original. All the seats have been removed for
refurbishing. The metal end panels on each row of seats feature a raised “PHS”. There are exterior
entrances into the auditorium off the porticos as well as interior entrances through the school.

The original section of the high school has an H-shaped plan. The school office was located on the rear
side of the building opposite the auditorium. This space was reconfigured somewhat over the vears and
now is sheathed with modern paneling.  Located over the office on the second floor and opposite the
entrance to the auditorium balcony, was the library. Small by today’s standards, it features two Tuscan
colurmns which divides the main space. Originally the gvmnasium was in the basement below the
suditorium with girls and boys lecker rooms on either side. Glass blocks in the floor of the porticos

sove provided light into locker rooms and steam from the showers was vented under the entry stairs.
Ducts from the heating plant in the basement to each room survive and are visible where they enter the
heating unit.

There is one other buildings on the school lot. Facing Guarantee Street is a Colonial Revival-style house
that is the sole survivor of several bouses that once stood on the west side of this street. It is a two-story,
three-bay frame dwelling sheathed with weatherboards on a low brick foundation. It has a heavy
modillioned cornice with dentils and decorative metal shingles in the pedimented ends of the cross-gable
roof. The one-story, three-bay front porch features fluted columns and a turned balustrade. A metal fire
escape has been added to the south side of the house,

Brick House Run forms the western boundary of this lot. In this area. the stream banks are lined with
granite blocks. A small footbridge spans the stream about half-way down the west side of the lot.

. HISTORY:

Briefly note any significamt events, personages and/or families associated with the property.
{Detatled family geneslogies are not necessary.) Please list all sources of information. Only
material contained on the form will be forwarded o the members of the State Review Board.
Additional information may be submitted on typed, consecutively numbered 8 12" x 11" sheets,
A% DECESSAry,



Petersburg High Schoo!l stands on a tract of land known as “Paradise” that was acquired in 1813 for the
Petersburg Academy.  One of Petersburg’s earliest schools, it was chartered in 1794.° After its decline,
the property passed to the Anderson Seminary which opened mn 1821, Anderson Seminary was
established by a bequest of David Anderson, a Scottish merchant in Petersburg, who left money in his
will in 1819 1o establish a free school for the education of poor children.’ In 1863, with the aid of the
Peabody Education Fund, the city of Petersburg opened its public school svstem two vears ahead of the
state system. It eventually took possession of the Anderson Seminary building, a large brick, Gothic
Revival-style building.' The first public high school (for whites) was housed in the former Classical
Institute building that stood on Union Street across from the former U.S. Customs House, now City Hall,

In 1911, the high school moved into the Anderson Seminary building on West Washington Street.” By
1916, that building was overcrowded and the heating svstem inadequate. In response to these problems,
the City Council appropriated $140,000 in 1916 for a new high school.  F. M. Martin was
Superintendent of Schools at this time and active in promoting the cause of a new high school. Haicher
Seward, a prominent Petersburg leader and member of the School Board, became chairman of the
Construction Committee. His work in bringing the new high school to fruition was rewarded when the
first issue of the Missile produced in the new school was dedicated to him.®  The Missile was the school
magazine. H. D. Wolff was principal during this period.

The Petersburg High School was designed in 1916 by architect Finlay Forbes Ferguson, 5r. of the
Norfolk, Virginia firm Ferguson, Calrow and Wrenn Ferguson, a native of Norblk, studied
architecture at the Massachusetts Institute of Technology and began his architectural practice about 1890
in his native city. By 1904, he had formed a parinership with Charles 1. Calrow and in 1918, Hareld H.
Wrenn joined the firm. This partnership was later dissolved and by 1817, Ferguson was a pariner of
John K. Peebles, a Petersburg native, which continued through 1934, Ferguson and his partners
fesigned a variety of buildings including residences, banks, hotels, fire houses, stores, churches, and
£hools mostly in the Tidewater area but also included Peabody Hall at the University of Virginia.” It is
thought they designed one other building in Petershurg, possibly a school” Harwood & Moss of
Newport News was awarded the contract for general contractor and the school was constructed in 1917
1918." The metal cornice was fashioned by . M. Davis & Company, a local roofing and sheet metal
company.'’ When completed. the final cost for the new schaol was $171 0001

*Edward A. Wyatt, TV, diong the Streets of Petersburg, (Petersburg: By the Author, 1943), p. 35.

*James . Scott and Edward A. Wyatt, IV, Petersburg’s Story, 4 History, (Petersburg: by the authors,
1960y, p 119

“Wyatt, p. 55
*Ann Gilliam, ed., The Missile, (Petersburg: Petersbury High School, June 1919), p. 9.
*Gilliam, p. 7.

"Jobn E. Wells and Robert E. Dalton, The Virginia drchitects, 1835-1955, (Richmond: New South
Architectural Press, 1997), p. 140,

3*%@%@%? “Proposal for the Adaptive Reuse of the Old Petersburg High School,” {Petersburg: City
of Petersburg, nd.).

silliam, p. 7.
Prarber Davis, personal communication, 23 April 19938,
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Before the school served as an education facility, it was pressed into service as a hospital during the
influerza epidemic and did not open as a school until 1919, The auditoriurm was not built umtil the new
igh school was oceupied and the old Anderson Seminary building, located on the front section of the
iot, was vacated and demolished.” The auditorium was completed during the spring term of 1919 and
had a seating capacity of 1100,

The various arrangements of classes and programs were given in the 1919 issue of The Missile. The
original gymnasium was located in the basement and had a full size basketball court and indoor baseball
diamond.” After the new gymnasium was built, this space became the cafeteria. There had been two
cafeterias in the basement originaily, a boys and girls, with the boy’s space the larger of the two, When
the genders were segregated in the building, such as restrooms, locker rooms, and cafeterias, the gurl’s
reoms were located in the eastern section of the building while the bovs were in the western end.
According to one source, the playgrounds were also separate at one time.”  Also located in the
basement was the bockstore, the Manual Training rooms of the Industrial Arts Department, and the
heating plant. The heating system was state of the art when the high school opened. Fach room has a
separate duct from the heating unit, which was regulated by a thermostat in the room. The principal’s
office was located on the main level along with the school superintendent’s office and the school board
room. The science rooms and laboratories were located on the third floor.™®

The students were justly proud of their new school. The first issue of The Missile published in the new
school dealt entirely with the rew building. They wrote, “The Petersburg High School is keeping pace
with the times in every way” and “One of the handsomest school buildings in the South is our own
Petersburg High School™."’

The schoel population at the high school continued to increase and within ten vears of opening, it had
weome crowded. The 1927 opening of a junior high school relieved the situation.’® In 1939, a
gymnasium annex was added. The architect of this section is unknown. The 1938 drawings for the
addition are labeled: “Division of School Buildings, State Department of Education, Richmond, Va.”"’
In addition to the gym, this section also housed locker rooms and science classrooms on the lower floor.

in 1944, the house on Guarantee Street was purchased and remodeled for use by the home economics
department.  The entire school was renovated in 1958, It was at this time that the concrete floors in the
halls were covered with tile and lower acoustical ceilings with fnorescent Hghting were installed.
Additional classrooms were constructed on property purchased on Guarantee Street. In the early 1960z,
the vacant Robert E. Lee Elementary School, located a block away, was used by the expanding

igﬁmﬁymms, Appomatiox Educational Foundation, nd.
PGiltiam, p. 30, 14,
“Gilliam, p. 14.

¥ Robert C. Walker, President, Appomattox Educational Foundation, personal communication, 23 April
1998,

%Gilliam, p. 20.
Gilliam, p. 11.
# Anonymous, Appomattox Educational Foundation, n.d. (Typewritten)

Faadler.



vocational program and in 1966 an additional building was constructed behind that school for a machine
shop. In 1969, the new vocational building was opened on Pine Street. It was named for LB. Pittman, a
long time advocate of vocational education.” .

<he 15705 brought school integration to Petersburg and the Petersburg High School became the only
high schoel in the city. Crowding increased and the 1972 annexation of parts of Prince George and
Dinwiddie Counties added to the population at the school. Mobile classrooms were placed in front of
and on the east and west sides of the school. A new city high school opened in 1973 and the old one
was vacant for a year. In 1974, it reopened as a middle school housing all the 7™ grade students in the
city. By 1979, & was again vacant. Classes for alternative education later occupied the gymnasium
annex but had lefl by 1986. The schoo! has been vacant since that time.

7. REASON FOR REQUEST:

This PIF is being completed as part of the cost-share agreement between the VDHR and the City of
Petersburg for the propesed Folly Castle Historie District boundary increase,

8. PHOTOOGRAPHS:
At least FOUR black and white exterior photographs (North, South, East and West elevations
are good) and FOUR black and white interior photographs must be provided. Photographs of
other buildings on the property and views of the general setting are also required. The inclusion
of photographs is essential to the completion of this application. Without photographs, the
application canmot be considered and will be returned. Photographs should be labeled on the
reverse in pencil and should not be mounted or affized in anv way.

4, MAP:
Please include a map showing the location of the property. A sketched map is not acceptable, A
USGS or county map is preferred. Please note street and route numbers. Any outbuildings on
the property should also be noted. Please include a "North” arrow. This form cannot be
processed withow a map showing the property's exact location.

10, Is the property income producing? Yes No X Ifso, will the applicant seek to use
the State and/or the Federal Rehabilitation Tax Credits? Yes X No
Would you be inferested in the ecasement program?  Yes No

L. ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:

# Anonymous, Appomattox. Educational Foundation, nd. (Typewritten)



12, APPLICANT INFORMATION (Individual completing form)

NAME:
DAYTIME TELEPHONE: Area Code( 3 -
ADDRESS:

CITY / BTATE / ZIP CODE:

APPLICANT'S BIGNATURE: DATE:

*NOTE: F @UR (4) SETS OF LABELS OF ALL OWNERS AND ADJACENT
%W’Kﬁfﬁ ARE REQUIRED OR MAY BE SUBMITTED ON DISK IN LABEL




Departmental policy requires that the following officials of local jurisdiction be notified prior to any
consideration of eligibility by the State Review Board. Please provide the names and addresses of those

wrently servicing, as applicable. This information must be provided before this form can be presented
@ the State Review Board for consideration,

Mayor of the City or Towm

Rosalyn R. Dance, City Hall, Room 210, 133 N, Union Street, Petershurg, Virginia 23803

Chairman of the Board of Supervisors (for county and town properties):

City ar Town Manager or County Administrator:

B, David Canada, City Hall, Room 202, 133 N, Union Street, Petersburg, Virginia 23803

Director of City or Town Planning Department:

seomard A, Muse, City Hall, Room 304, 138 W, Union Street, Petersburg, Virginia 23803

Chairman of Uity or County Planning Commission:

Anthony F. Gaines, Ciry Hall, Room 304, 135 N, Union Street, Petersburg, Virginia 23803

City Council member or County Supervisor in whose district the property is located:

Annie M. Mickens, City Hall, Room 21, 135 N, Union Street, Petersburg, Virginia 23803

{Optional) Name and address of contact person for local historie preservation group:

Landon C. Wellford, City Hall, Room 304, 135 N, Union Strest, Petershurg, Virginia 23803
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APPEMDIX B

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES NOMINATION FORM
FOR
FOLLY CASTLE HISTORIC DISTRICT BOUNDARY INCREASE



HPS Form 13-908 D8R No, 19238618
{Rev, 16-941

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Bervics

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
REGISTRATION FORM

Thus foro is for use in nominating or requesting dewerminations for individual propertics vad districis. %oz instrustions in How o C omplutz the Mational
Beguier of Higork Places Reghuration From (Mational Regisser Bulletin 1640, Complete sach fem by marking ™" in the appropriate hox or Iy entering
e infirmativn requested. Hany e doss not apply 1o the property heing decumentsd, emier "MAAY for “not apptisable.” For functions, architecisral
stessifivation, materials, and areas of sigpificasce, amtsr only categorios and suboategonics Som the wtructions. PMlare addftionul entries and narrative tansg
on continaation shests (NPS Form 10-900a) Uss 3 typewriter, word provessor, ne compater, 1 complete 28 ems.

1. Name of Property

historic name ___Follv Castle Historic District (Boundary Inorease)
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Architectural Classification:

Romanesque Revival
Classical Revival
Mo Style

7. Summary Description:

The area of the Folly Castle Historic District second boundary increase is located in Petersburg, a
major city m southside Virginia that lies about thirty miles south of the state capital, Richmond. The
boundary increase is southwest of the original commercial and residential heart of the city and west
of the existing Folly Castle Historic District. It comprises a twelve block area that represents a late
nineteenth-early twentieth century neighborhood typical of Petersburg.  The second boundary
increase, like the existing district, 15 an urban, predominantly residential area of farly high density bin
it also includes a former elementary school, a churches, several commercial buildings, and two
factories. The overwhelming majority of the houses in the extension area are frame and many have
little stylistic detailing. The larger, more stylish houses, in Italianate, Queen Anne, and Colonial
Revival styles, are located on Washington Street the major thoroughfare in both this and the existing
Folly Castle Historic District. A commercial node that developed in the 1930s and 1940s in this
neighborhood is also located on West Washington Strest. The cross streets in the extension aren,
particularly south of Washington Strest, represent a more working class neighborhood. Some of the
oldest dwellings in the boundary increase are found on these streets. The buildings in the increase area
are sited on medium to small size lots, many of which are fenced. Like other areas of Petersburg, the
neighborhood has evolved over the years resulting In some changes to the historic fabric of the
buildings. The most predominant is the use of synthetic siding such as bricktex. aluminum, and vinyl
In some instances original details on porches have been lost or replaced. Modern nfill largely
consists of modern brick and frame ranch-type dwellings. Overall, the proposed boundary increase
retains an architectural integrity common to the city of Petersburg as a whole.

There are 120 contributing and 16 por-contributing buildings in the second boundary increase. The
contributing resources nclude 109 dwellings, one school, one church, two factories, and seven
commercial buildings. Also found in the district are landscape elements such as Brick House Run,
sidewalks, stone and concrete curbing, and fences,
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Hinton Street from Hazel to 2353 Hinton Street; on the east by 235 Hinton Strest, the First Baptist
Church, and buildings on the west side of Perry Street; on the south by West Wythe Street fom Perry
to Guarantee strests and the onginal southern line of the Petersburg High School to Brick House
Run. The residences on the south side of West Washington Street from Brick House Run to Pine
Street; and on the west by buildings on the east side of Guarantee Street from Wythe Street north to
the old high school, Pine and Hazel streets, and includes houses on the north side of Washington
Street from 611 West Washington Street to Hazel Street. The expansion area includes buildings on
both sides of West Washington Street from the exdsting district west to Dunlop Street; and is bounded
on the porth by the south side of Commerce Street, on the east by the existing historic distrivt; on the
south by Farmer Street; and on the west by butldings on the west side of South Street from Farmer
Street north to Commerce Sirest,

Architectural Analysis

The expansion area represents a middle and working class residential area with buildings dating from
the second quarter of the nineteenth century to the 1970s and 19805, Although there are a number
of pre-Civil War domestic structures, the majority were built in the two decades before and after the
turn-of-the-century. The most stylish of these, represented by the Quesn Anne and Ttalianate stvles
in the nineteenth century and the Colonial Revival styvle in the twenticth century, are located on
Washington Street, a major thoroughfare through Petersburg, The north/south streets of Pine, Jones,
and South are representative of working class residential neighborhoods in Petersburg. The earliest
dwellings in the extension area are found on these blocks. These houses generally are devoid of
ornamentation with the exception of turned porch posts or bracketed cornices. They present a solid,

sturdy, no nonsense face to the world,

The {Jueen Anne styvle homes, which stand along Washington Street. represent fshionable residential
architecture of late nineteenth century Petersburg when much of the expansion area was developed.
Prior to the Civil War, the 600 and 700 blocks of Washington Street had a fow large buildings with
dependencies but none survive today. A tobacco fBctory stood on the southeast corner of Jones and
Washington Streets. Although several of the houses in the 800 block of Washington Street stood
during the Civil War period, most of the existing dwellings were constructed after the war,

One of the earliest houses on Washington Street in the expansion area is the Couch House (123-0%6-



HPS Form 10-980-a OMB Mo, 1024-0818
{885}

nited States Department of the Interior

Mational Park Service

National Register of Historic Places {Folly Castle Historic District Boundary Inerease}
Continnation Sheet {Petersburg, ¥a.}

Section 7 Page 3

0138} located on the southwest corner of Washington and South streets. Dr. Charles Couch who laid
out the rest of this block between Washington and Wythe streets built it in the late 1850s.
Constructed of pressed brick, the two-story, three-bay, gable-roof house originally had a side-
passage, double-pile plan. The house was expanded In late ninefeenth century with a two-bay
addition to the east end with a character more In keeping with a row house than the original detached
dwelling. One of its early, if not original, dependencies survives to the rear of the house but i3 now
a separate property. UOngmally the one-story, brick building {123-096-0217) mav have been a
carriage house/oflice or kitchen but In later years it was used as a cabinet shop.

The house at 818 West Washington {123-096-0142) is the best-preserved example of the Queen Anne
style with one of the most decorative porches in the expansion area. The house features a three-sided
projecting bay with almost conical roof on the front, a bracketed cornice, and decorative cast-iron
roof cresting. The mansard roof of the one-story, one-bay porch has even more omate roof cresting
and is supported by unusually fancy brackets with incised decoration and pendants. The Mollwaine
House (123-096-0116), on the northeast corner of Washington and Jones Street, is a large Queen
Anne-style house that was built as single-family dwelling about 1889, It was converted into
apartments in the early 1950s as were a number of the larger houses in this area. 815 West
Washington Strest (123-096-0124) in an example of 2 late Victorian Queen Anne-stvle house in the
proposed extension area. It features a two-story, three-sided bay on each side and a turret on the
front corner topped with a flat roof with heavy bracketed cornice.

The house at 842 West Washington Street (123-096-0144), which at one time served as the Rectory
for St. John's Episcopal Church next door, is a finely detailed example of the ltalianate/Victorian style
in the expansion area. One of a handfid of brick houses in the expansion area, it features a two-story,
three-sided projecting bay on the facade, heavy paneled cornice with pared brackets and pendants,
and window hoods with incised decoration. The house also retains its original one-story porch with
mansard roof, modillion cornice, and decorative brackets. The interior of this house features lavered
architrave trim around all windows and doors and a single-flight stair with decorative brackets, heavy
tumed newel, and paneling below the stair. Another well detailed house that is similar to houses In
the existing Folly Castle district is found at 814 West Washington Street (123-096-0141). The two-
story, three-bay frame house built 1880-18953 has a low hip roof, bracketed cornice, and elaborate
window architrave. The focal point of the house is the one-bay porch with its paired polygonal posts
and pendant suspended from the architrave.
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A house unique in the district expansion area is located at 20 Pine Street (123-096-0159). Built abouwt
1855, this Italian Villa-inspired dwelling i the only house of this style in the propesed expansion area
and, according to a 1973 city survey. the only one in the city. The 1877 Beers Map of Petersburg,
however, indicated that its twin originally stood next door. Clad with board and batten siding, it has
deep eaves, a central brick chimmey, and a cructform plan. The wrap-around porch may be a late-
nineteenth century addition.

The houses at 308 and 810 West Washington Street (123-096-3139 and 123-096-0140) are
representative of a number of two-story, three-bay houses in the expansion area. Built of both frame
and brick, they have a side-passage plan associated with the typical city row house. Most have full
width porches with turned posts and decorative saw-work or brackets. The houses at 309 and 813
West Washington Street {123-096-0122 and 123-096-0124) are characteristic of the larger early
twentieth century houses in the expansion ares. Both were built about 1913 and are two-and-a-half
story, hip roof, brick dwellings with hip-roof dormers and full width porches.

Jones Street, tormerly Jones Road, is one of the oldest roads in the expansion ares and the oldest
surviving houses are found along this street. Jones Street alse appears to represent an African-
American neighborhood from the period immediately after the Civil War 1o the present. The houses
along Jones Street are more vernacular in nature and almost universally of frame constroction. There
are several frame houses on the East Side of Jones Sireet in the 200 block with side-passage plang
and exterior-ersd chimneys, which are unusual In this area. These inchude 123-096-175, 176, and 178,
They are two-story, two- or three-bay frame dwellings that date from the second and third quarters
of the nineteenth century and appear to be the oldest dwellings in the expansion area. The one-story,
center chimney house at 231 Jones Street (123-096-179) iz atypical for this area and is the only one
of its kind in the extension area. Built about 1860, it represents a type of worker's cotfage more
commnonly found in other areas of Petersburg,  Jones Street also boasts the only shotgun-type
housing in the area at 103 Jones Street (123-096-0171). This diminutive, two-bay house features
cornice returns on the gable-end roof. The shotgun plan is closely associated with African-American
settlements in the south.'

There are a variety of building types in the expansion ares although three in particular stand out; the

*Gabrielle M. Lanier and Bernard L. Herman, Everyday Architecturs of the Mid-Adlamic, (Balthmore: Johns Hopling
University Press, 1997, p. 43, : ¢



NPE Form 155004 DB Mo, 1024-8018
{8-86)

United States Department of the Interior

National Park Service

Mational Register of Historic Places {Folly Castle Historic District Boundary Increase)
Continustion Sheet {Petersburg, Va.}

Section 7 Page §

double house, the one-story, three-bay, hip-roof cottage, and the very small, one story house type.
The double bouse is the most numerous of these three types. The double house consists of two side-
passage, double-pile plan housing units placed side by side into g single building. The single side-
passage, double-pile plan developed in the Chesapeake region in the late cighteenth century. By the
17805, they had become a mainstay of the regions urban areas where the main floor front room
ﬁ“ﬁ({%&%ﬁi}ﬁ}’ served office or commercial purposes. It remained popular in wrban areas through the
1940s."

The double house, also called the double tenement in Petersburg, is an important house type in the
city and in the extension area. Twenty-four were entified. They are found on most streets in the
extension area with South, Jones, and Pine streets having the largest mumber, Only two were found
on Washington Street. According to Sanborn maps, the area just south of the extension area once
had numerous double houses that were demolished during urban renewal in the early 1970s.

Built of both brick and frame in the extension area. they have a variety of decorative detailing or they
can be very plain. They also vary in the placement of the interior passage from the gable ends of the
house to the center of the house. Double houses with center passages have end-wall chimneys while
those with passages on each end of the building share center chimneys.

The largest and most ornate of the doubles in the extension area stands on the southeast corner of
Jones and Washington (123-096-0134) on the site of a tobacce factory that served as a hospital
during the Civil War. Built in the late 1870s of brick, it features central doors sheltered by a canopy
supported by large, wiangular brackets, two-story box bay windows on the front, a heavy, bracketed
cornics, and interior-end chimneys on each gable end.

One with Victorian characteristics is located at 32-34 Pine Street (123-096-0160). Unique in the
expansion area because ol its entry, the two, two-bay units share a three-sided central projecting bay
with entrances located in the sides of the projecting bay. There are also projecting bavs on each end
of the bullding. Each unit has an individual two-bay porch with turned posts and decorative brackets.
The double house at 28-30 5. South Street (123-096-219) has twin, two-bay, hip-roof porches.
There is a cluster of four double houses on Wythe Street just east of Pine Street. These inchude 123-
096-0150, 0151, and 0152, Although there have been alterations such as synthetic siding and

“Lanier and Herman, p. 32-38.
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replacement windows, they appear to be almost identical with a four-bay facade, central doors, and
bracketed cornice.

Five of the one-story, three-bay, hip-roofed cottages are found in the extension area. A cluster of
three is found on Hinton and MNorth South streets (123-096-0106, 107, and 196), The other two are
located on South Jones and South South streets. All appear to have been built in the last half of the
nineteenth century. The house at 19 North South Street (123-096-0196) is the best preserved and
teatures weatherboard siding with corner boards, a hip roof with two interior axial chimneys and a
nicely detailed three-bay front porch with Tuscan columns and turned halusters. The two on Hinton
Street (123-096-0106 and 107) are similar with six-over-six light double-hung sash windows.

Sprinkied throughout the extension area, are several very small one-story, two-or three-bay, frame
dwellings. One of the earliest, which appears 10 have been standing in the 1870s, is located at 640
Lumsden Street (123-096-0238). The original two-bay section has a steeply pitched gable roof and
exterior-end brick chimney. 722 Commerce Street {123-096-0235) is unique among these small
houses in that it has a hip roof with almost center chimney. The two houses at 654 Lawrence Street
(123-096-0147) and 211 South South Street (123-096-0209) are very similar and may represent
dwellings built by African Americans as they moved into the extension area in the late nineteenth
century. Both of these houses have low-pitched, side-gable roofs, three-over-one light windows, and
two-bay front porches. By far the smallest of these diminutive dwellings is located at 212 Jones
Street (123-096-0189). It is two bays wide with a “catslide” gable roof, interior brick chimney, and
a one-bay front porch

There is one contributing school in the extension area and the non-contributing modem industrial
education annex to the old Petersburg High School. The Neo-Classical Revival-style Robert E. Lee
Elementary School (123-096-0113) is prominently located on the north side of West Washington
Street about a block from the high school. Built in 1911, it is a symmetrical, five-bay wide, H-shaped
building. Clad in buff-colored bricks, a massive two-story portice supported by two sets of three-
clustered cast-iron Corinthian columns dominates the facade. The high school, built about six vears
later, continued the tone of monumental architecture for educational buildings in Petersburg set by
the R.E. Lee School. The high school annex (123-096-0156) i5 a one-story brick building with
narrow windows was built in 1969 to bouse the indusirial arts departments.

Like the schodls, there are two churches in the extension area, one contributing and one non-
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contributing. St. John's Episcopal Church {123-096-0145) anchors the western end of the extension
area at the corner of West Washington Street and Dunlop Street. Built in 1897 1o replace an earlier
church in this location, the Romanesque Revival, cruciformeplan, brick structure, features buttresses,
a pafterned slate gable roof on the main structure and a tall, Gve-stage corner tower. St John'sis a
contributing resource for the district. The Reconciliation Fellowship Church (123-096-0113) at 621
West Washington Sitreet 15 a modern brick church that stands on the site of an earlier church and is
a non-contributing resource.

West Washington Street hosts a small commercial area, mostly on the north side of the 700 block.
The commercial building at 647 West Washington Street (123-096-0117), built in the 19305 or
19403, probably as a grocery store, is a one story brick building with Colonial Revival-style details
such as the concrete quoining. Next door is a one-story, gable-end entry, brick building (123-096~
0118) which was constructed about the same time and Hke the grocery store features revival-style
detailing. The stucco in the gable end is suggestive of the Tudor Revival style. The commercial
building at the corner of West Washington Sireet and North South Street {123-096-01203, also of
the sarpe period, is even more emphatic in its use of the Tudor Revival stvle with the half-timbering
in the gables. The commercial building on the south side of West Washington at South Jones Strest
was a restaurant in the late 1930s. Its interesting mission-style parapet continues the use of revival
styles for commercial buildings in this area.

There is one service station in the commercial node of the extension area which is a contributing
resource. The station at 721 West Washington Street (123-096-0119) is typical of many built in the
19408 with its smooth metal cladding and three-ribbed horizontal band around the cornice. It is the
only example of Art Deco commercial architecture in the district.

The two factories in the extension area are located at oppusite ends of the district. They are typical
of many factories in Petersburg in that they are {or were) situated In residential neighborhoods. (The
residential areas south of the Stuart-Keith factory were demolished during urban renewal in the 1970z
and the land remains open and unoccupied.) The older of the two factories, the Seidenburg &
Company Cigar Factory {123-096-0241}, is located at the comer of South and Hinton Streets and
was buill in about 1906 as a cigar factory. It is a three-story brick building that occupies almost the
entire end of the block. A one-story tower with recessed arches tops the slightly projecting entry bay
and the entire building features corbeling at the cornice level The multiple, arched windows have
been enclosed with concrete block., The Stuart-Keith shirt factory (123-096-0240), lpcated at the
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corner of Brown and Pines streets, is of more recent vintage. Built about 1920, # also is a three-story
brick building with an industrial design.  Its main feature iy s rectangular-shaped. multi-paned
winddows with concrete lintels, Both factories have flat roofs and sit immediately adjacent to the
sidewalk.

There are a number of landscape elements in the expansion area, the oldest being Brick House Run.
This creek has long been used as a boundary demarcation and 18 frequently cited in deed descriptions.
Brick House Run originates further west where historically it formed the southern boundary of Pride’s
Field and winds It way in a northerly direction through the proposed expansion area and the existing
historic district before taking an easterly direction through the heart of Petersburg. In some areas,
the Run is little more than an open ditch but in this area 1t 15 lined with grangte stones. It flows ina
novtherly direction through the district and forms part of the eastern boundary of the expansion area.
In addition, a simple metal footbridge spans the creck connecting the old Petersburg High School
n the existing historic district, with #s technical center, 2 non-contributing building built in 1969, and
located in the expansion area.

{Other features found in the expansion aren include low stone, concrete, or concrete block curbing
around front vards. These are most noticeable on Washington Street, but are also found on Hinton
Street. For elevated vards, these curbs expanded to serve as retaining walls for the vard. Such is the
case at the Mcllwaine House al the northeast corner of Washington and Jones streets which has a
conerete block wall, The house at 625 West Washington Street (123-096-0114) features a brick wall
topped with conorete. A retaining wall of rusticated bock is located at 227 South Jones Street (123-
096-0178). Houses built on elevated lots also feature concrete steps from the sidewalk to the yard.
The Robert E. Lee Elementary School, as well as the houses that flank i, have a flight of steps up
from the sidewalk. The only wrought iron fence in the expansion area is located at 13 South Pine
Strest (123-096-0153). Modern chainlink foncing is the most popular type. Wooden fences are most
likely to be located down the side property lines or across the rear but three picket fences are found
in the district. A unusual fence of stone curb and piers linked by boards surrounds the front yard of
g11 West Washington Street (123-096-0123). Bidewalks are found on all blocks.

The Folly Castle secomd boundary Increase is a mid-to-late nineteenth and early twentieth century
middle and working class neighborhood in Petersburg.  Its domestic architecture ranges from the
plain workers houses to the large dwellings in Italianate, Queen Anne, and Colonial Revival styles.
The second boundary inerease also ncludes a variety of building tvpes that includé educational,
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rebigious, industrial, and commercial resources. The area retains much of its historic fabric and
conveys the sense of a nineteenth and early twentieth century community.

FOLLY CASTLE BISTORIC DISTRICT BOUNDARY INCREASE (1998 INVENTORY

Commerce Sirest

722 Commerce Street, 18301880, one-and-a-halfestory side gable vernacular frame Brmer double howse, convered to
single dwelling, two gabled dormers in half-story, vinyl siding, 20C pictare window in first floor

windows on first foor, 11 wood sash windows at second floor, shed extension to gable mof ot rear, one-story, thres-bay
porch with shed roof, vertical woud sheathing on house

70417 Commerce Stwreet, 1900-1910, tweesiory, twosbay side-gable exrly 200 vernacular frame dwelling, 6/6 sash

06708 Commerce Street, ca 1900, two-story, four-bay wide side gable vernacular frame double house, comverned to single
dwelling, central brick chimney with corbeled cap, 1/1 wond sash windows, metal awning arcund modern shed-ronfed
porch, new porch railing and balusters. vioy! siding

714 Commerce Street, ca. 1900, two-story, four-bay-wide side gable vernacular frame double house, convered o single
dweiling, gable roof with shed extension 1o rear, box cornice across facade, one-story, three-bay flab-roof porch on tapered
wood posts mop brick plers, stone-textured asphalt siding

722 Commerce Street, 188041910, diminuive one-story, iwo-bay vernacular frame house, hip roof of standing seam metal,
central ridge chimney, one-story, two bay shed-roofed porch with asphalt shingles, square woaden Tuscan posts, modern
flush door

Hazel Btreer

18-20 Hazel St., 19305, one-story gable front vernacular frame double housedfontiage, one-story, two-bay porch enclosed
in wood lattice, asbestos siding

Hinton Sireet

504 Hinton 51, 19303, one-story, three-bay gable-front vernacular frame conage, one-story, two-bay hippederoof porch
anclosed in plastic shesting, vinyl siding

608-610 Hinton 86, 1930s, one-story, six-bay side-gable vernasular Frame double house, 6/1 wood sash windows, central
interior sfope chimney, masonite siding
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624 Hinton St,, 19351948, 1.5 story Cape Cod-style masonry house with brick veneer, two gable dormers, gable portie
o1 square wood posts

704 Hintom 58, Bibleway Christian Church/The Auo Repair Center, oz 1970, one-story metal and concrete block warehouse
and garage (N

709 Hinton St., ca 1880 <1910, ang-story, three-bay by two-bay frame and weatherboard vernacular cottage, hipped roof
clad in standing seam mewd, two symmetrical interar slope corbeled-cap brick chimneys, thres-bay porch supported on fur
square wood posis

711 Hipten St, ca 1830-1910, one-story, thres-hay by two-bay frame and weatherboard vernacular cottage. hip roof clad
in standing seam metal, front porch enclosed with screen

301803 Hinton Street, Seidenberg & Company, Ine, Cigar Factory/American Suppliers, Inc., a branch of American
Tobacco, 1880-1900, three-story, sizxteen-hay-deep brick factoryiwarehouse on raised basement, three-bay ot with
four-story ceniral projecting suery bay flanked by two recessed bays, three three-story round-arch window apenings, fourth
story block with blind arcade, corbeling and flat roof with terra coffa coping, corbeling at cornice, window openings Siled
with concrete block, two one-story additions, brick with low-pitched shed roof and concrete block and brick with a flat roof
and metal casement windows, currentdy Engine Chty

Jones Sireet

14-18 Jones 51, ca. 1903, two-story, five-bay-wide, vernacalar frame double house, three-bay north unit, two-bay south
unit, porches with rned wood posts, aluminum siding

26 Jones S, 1880-1900, two-story, three-bay-wide hip-roofed vernacular Same house, bracketed cornice, interior end
chimneys, /2 wood sash windows, single-ieaf door with wansam, one-story, three-hay hip-roofed porch, wirned wood posts,
stone textured asphalt shingle siding

24 Jones S5t., 18301910, two-story, two-bay, hip-roofed vernacalar frame and weatherboard dwelling, one-story, two-bay
hip-roufed porch, twmed wood posts

27 Jouwws B, ca. 1900, two-story, two-bay frame house, side gable roof with shed roof extension af rear, ong-story, twvo-bay
hip-roefed porch, square wood posts, replacement metal sash windows, synthetic siding, dilapidated 20C concrete-block
garage to northeast

32 Jowmes St 1960, one-story, four-bay frame side gable house with aluminum siding My
36-38 Jones St 1900-1920, rwo-story, four-bay-wids low-pitched side-gable double house, central (ridge) brick chimney,

6/6 wood sash windows, one-story, four-bay-wide hipped roof porch with square wood posts, wide horizontal ashestos or
masonite siding, one-siory gable front early-mid-20C concrete block and woed garage o southwest
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10F Jones St 1880-1910, one-story, three-bay-wide U-shaped hip-roofed frame bungalow, two hipped wings extending
back perpendicular to ridge of main roof, vertical wood sheathing and mid-20C shutters, modern one-siory, one-bay shed
parch with wrought ron suppors

HOS fones 56, ca. 1910, one-siory, wwo-bay frame shotgun house, gable front with cornice returns, weatherboard io gable,
ang-story, ong-bay hip-roofed porch, tar paper across facade and aluminum siding on south elevation

118 Jones 5t., 19505, one-story low-piiched satslide-rooferd brick and frame howse, mid 200 gambrel roof wood frame shed

at rear of property {MCH
122 Jones St 1970-1980, one-story, four-bay brick house, gable roof with extended shed roof (™}
128 Jopes 51, 1950-1960, one-story. three-bay hip-roofed frame and aluminum siding house (MY
203 Jones 8., 19805, one-story, four-bay, gable-roafed frame house, viny! siding (M

211 Jones 81, ca. 1900, twoestory, two-bay, side-gable with shed extension, vernacalar frame house, ane~siory. two-tay
flat-ronf porch on square wood piers, metal sash windows, madern flush wood donr with diamond-shaped lighes

204-206 Jones 81, 1880-1910, two-stary, four-bay-wide symmetrical vernacular frame double house converted fo single
dwelling, hip roof with cenral chimney, one-story, three-bay-wide hip- roofed porch with tuned wouod supports, Brick-tex
siding

210 Jones 3t [380-1910, two-story, two-bay wide vernacular frame house, hip-roafed with dep eaves and simple cornios,
interior slope stretcher bond brick chimpey, asphalt or asbestos stungles over original wemherboards, one-story, two-bay
hip-roufed porch ghost, openings boarded over

212 Jones St,ca. 1910, vne-story, two-bay vernagular frame house, fow-pitched catstide roof, one-stary, one-bay Harroofed
porch with thin square wood posts, Brick-tex siding, wooden handicap access ramp

214-216 5. Jones 5. 1850-1913, two-story, four-bay side-gable vernacular frame double houss, central sorbeled chimney,
masenry piers clad in texured aluminum, modern four-bay, one-stary shed roof porch on square wood posts, Rrick-tex or
asphalt brivk textured siding, metal awnings over second floor windows and around porch

215 Jones St 1850-1870, two-story, two-bay-wide vernacular frame house, side gable main roof with shed extension o
rear, T-course American bond shouldered exterior end chimney on south elevation, alminum siding

217219 Jones St. 1840-1910, mid-19C vernacular two-story, two-bay wide frame side-hall house with exterior side
chimney on the south elevation, one-story, one-bay flat roof portico with square wood posts and brick plers, ssphalt siding,
ca. 1810 ong-story, two-bay frame addition to south elevaion, side gable roof with an extended shed roof at the rear,
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vertical wond sheathing

221 Jomes 81, 1910-1930, ca. 1919, one-story, two-bay side gable vernacular frame cottage with extended shed roof af rear,
one-bay, ong-story flat roof portice with turned posts, cross gable with ca, 1930-30, two-bay, two-story projecting fromt
gable addiion, ashestos siding

222-224 5. Jomes St. 1880-1910, two-story, four-hay-wide versacular frame double house converted o single dwelling,
hipped standing seam metal clad roof, deep eaves and simple cornics, ceniral corbeled chimney, one-story, three-hay-wide
hip-roufed porch, lrned wood posts, two styles of asphalt/Brick-tex siding

226 Scath Jones 3¢, 1380-1900, two-story, two-bay-wide hip-roofed frame house, ane-story, two-bay Hp-ronfed porch.
three Doric columns, two interior {slope] corbeled-cap chimneys. multi-colored fabric awnings on second-floor windows
ansd arcund porch, asluminum siding

227 South Jones St, 182541840, two-story, threg-bay-wide, side-hall plan frame house with {rebult] exterior side chimpey,
ane-story, one-bay hip-reofed porticn, square posts, LI8C one-story, one-bay side gable addition to nonh end, sluminum
siding, sl windows and doors have heen boarded over

231 Sowth Jones 81, 1865-1880, one-story asymmetrical three-bay frame and weatherboard dwelling, side-gable roof,
cenral brick chimngy lald in strewher bond, corbeled vap, 6/6 wood sash windows, one-story frame addition under
sonstruction on the east and southeast comer of house

232 South Jones St., 1890-1915, two-story, four-bay-wide, one-bay deep side-gable fame double house, corbeled ceptral
brick chimney, Brse-floor 1/1 sash windows replace original §/6 wood sashes, beaded vinyl siding over weatherbnards

£34-236 5. Jones 5t 1913-1940, one-story, five-bay-wide low-pitched side-gable fame double house, solid songrete block
foundation, &6 wood sash windows, pair of "twisted” interior slope chimneys not baid square with house, two pre-siory,
one-bay shed roof porches with wrought ron supports, aluminum siding

Lawrence Sirest

630 Lawrence St ca 1900, two-story, two-bay hip-roofed vernacular frame house, two-bay, oue-story hip-roofed porch
with Tuscan posts

634 Lawrence 5, oo 19001930, one-story, three-bay side-gable vernacular frame and weatherboard cottage, galde el
smccoed masonry inerior slope chimney, ane-story, two-bay flat-roofed porch with square wood posts, gable-roofed frame
and vertical siding cuthuilding

635 Lawrence 8, oz 1300-1910, two-siory, two-bay hig-mofed vernacular frame and weatherboard house, 272 wond sash
windows, contral corbeled beick chimey
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Lumsden Sirset

&40 Lumsden S, ca. 1870-1920, one-story, two-bay frame side-gable cottage, one-story, ane-bay addition 1o east, interior
masoary chimney, ste-story, two-bay porch on wrought-iron posis, standing seam metal roof, sluminum siding

Pine Street

L3 Pine St ca, 1900, vwo-and-one-hatf-story, three-bay-wide asymmetrical Georgian Revival-inspired frame house, hip
root clad in asphall shingles, one-story, three-bay hip-roofed porch with four unfluted columas, capitals obscured by
wwnings, three hig-reofpd dormers -

26 Pime 5t o 1853, two-swry cruciform lalian Vila-style frame and board & basten house, deep eaves, central chimney,
one-siory wrap-around porch with mrmed wooden posts

21 Pine Su, o 1900, two-stary, two-bay-wide vernacular frame house with viny! siding, one-story, two-bay Mp-roofed porch
with four unfluted wooden cobumns

27 A-B Pine S, ca. 1380-1900, two-story, two-bay-wide frame and weatherboard house with late Yictorian/Cueen Anne
influences, cross gable roof with polygonal projecting bavs, comice returns, parerae louversd vent on Font gable, one-siory,
four-bay hip- and shed-roofed porch on square wooden posts

28 Pine St, ca. 1890-1914, two-and-one-half.story, two-bay-wide Colonial Revive frame house clad in syuthetic siding,
hipe roof, ventral bip dormer, op- story wraparound porch with Tuscan columns spans two forward bays and abuts recessed
bay.

32-34 Pine St ca 189C-1914, vwn-story wansitionalivernacular frame and weatherboard double house, central three-sided
projecting bay contains entrances W two, two-bay units sach with one-story, two-bay, hip roof porches, wrned posts, sawn
hrackess

33-47 Pine St LB. Pliman Techoical Annex, ca. 1969, one-story, Zi-bay fat-roofed brick and masonry institutions)

”

building i

40 Pine St, ca 1980, one-story, four-bay hrivk-faced side gable dwelling, built by the swadents of Pitman Tech, across the
frent AL

5

44 Pine 81, ca. 1915, two-story, two-bay brick row house, flat roof with parapet side walls, false flared shed roof clad in
slate, one-story, one-bay shed roof porch with square Doric posts, gable-roofid frame and vertical siding E20C outbuilding
10 rear

46 Pine Bt ca. 1913, two-story, two-bay brick row house, fat roof with parapet side walls, flse shed roof clad i shos, one-
Story porch enclosed in brick addition, low-pitched gable-roofed frame and vertical siding outhuilding 1o rear
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HIZ Pine S, ca. 1880-1910, two-story, two-bay-wite vernacular frame house, hip roof, ang-story, thres-bay hip-roofed
porch on wmed posts, vinyl siding.

12 Pine 8t ez 1870, two-story, four-bay-wide vernacular, side-gable frame and weatherboard double house sn brick piers,
maodified into single dwelling

P15-117 Pine St, ca 1880, two-story, four-bay-wide symmetrival vernacular frame and wegtherbowrd doubis house, one-
story, four-bay hip-roofed porch with square wooden posts

119 Pine 5L, ca. 18R0-1900, two-story, three-bay-wids gable-ronfed frame house with contral front intersectis = gable, onie-
story, ene-bay porch with hipped roof, replacement wrought iron posts, sluminum and stone textured asphalt siding

124 Pine St va. 1890-1910, two-story, two-bay-wide, hip-rocfed vernacular frame and weatherboard bouse, one-story, tve-
bay porch with hip roof and tree Tuscan columns, modified into sparmentss

128413¢ Pine St ca. 1900, two-atory, four-bay-whie hip-roofed vernacular frame and weatherboard double houss, one-
story, four-bay hip-roofed porch on wooden columms

129-133 Pine Swreet, Stuart-Keith Manufacuring, sa. 1920, three-story, nine-bay by three-bay brick faciory, ono-s1ry,
three-bay warehouse addition o1 the rear (east), far roof with terrs coita coping, warehouse has fiat roof with thres-step
parapet, revessed vertical window bays separated by Tl vertical brick panels, six-course American bond with four and five
course variations, reinforced concrete lintels over large multi-pane metal cosement windows

132-134 Pine St, oa 1900, two-story, four-bay-wide, symmetrical hip-roofed vernacular frame double houss, one-story,
four-bay, bip-rofed porch with Dorie columns, twin corbeled chimneys

Bome Siyeet

South side Rome 5t between Somh and Jones Streers, ca. 1890, two-story vernacular gable front house, ane-story, two-bay
hip-roofed porch with tarned posts, asbestos/asphalt shingle siding and vertical wood siding

Morth Routh Sirset

11N, Bouth St ca. 1903-1920, two-stary, five-bay hip-roofed Georgian Revival S-course American bond brick house,
one-story, five-bay porch with central three-bay deck on molded concrete Tonie columns with two flanking one-bay entry
pavitions, two corbeled brick interior chimpeys

12 M. South St ca. 18801500, two-story, three-bay hip-roofed vernasular frame house, cornice brackets, three-bay, one-
story hip-roofed porch with turned posts and two half posts with decorative brackets, asbestos siding

14-18 M. Scuth 51, o, 1890-1914, wwo-story, four-bay-wide hip-roofed vermaeular frame double house, one-story, three-bay
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porch with Hat roof on square posts, pitched balustrade and turned newel posts separate entrances

19 M. South St ca. 1880-1910, one-story, three-bay hip-roofed vernacular frame and weatherboard cottage, two hip-roofed
wings perpendicular tw ridge of main roof, one-story, three-bay porch with Tuscan posts

20N, South St ca. 1940, one-story, three-bay, gable-front brick house, one-story. two-bay porch with Tuscan posts aligned
w0 southern bays

22 N, South 51, Washington, ca. 1930-1940, one-story commercial comer building, entrance located on clippedidiagonal
comer of the bullding, N. Sowmh Swest elevation with black and white tile mosaic spelling “Washingron®, ihree-step parapet
side wall plus zared pediment bay at northwest elevation, possible former lunch counter

HI7 N, Bouth 8t ca.1960s, one-story concrete block and plate glass service station, stone texture around plate glass
windows, two large garage bays, currently Willlams Aato & Truck Tire (N

Sonth Sauth Street

Dan's Foreign Car Repair 11 8. Souwth St. ca. 19705, ong-story concrete block, brick veneer service siation, filse deck roof.
inset gable, two garage bays, office area with plate glass windows N

12 5. South St, one-story, two-bay, side gable roof with shed extension. vernasular brick building built In two stages, 7~
course American bend on southern end, combination of strexcher and common bands o nonh end, former outbuilding 1o
804 W, Washington Sireet, former cabinet shop

13-13 8. South 3¢, cn 1880-1900, rwo-story, four-bay hip-roofed vernacular frame amd westherboard double house, one-
story, six-bay hip-rovfed poreh with attenuated Tuscan columns

18 5. South St, ca. 18RO-1900, owo-story, two-bay, hip-roofed vernaculer frame house, one-stary, three-bay hip-roofed
poreh with trned posts

23 & South 51, ca. 1880, rwo-story Queen Asne/vernacular hip-roofed frame house, projecting three-sided polygonal bay,
recessed two-story single bay with entry door, cornice brackets, wraparound porch with spindiework, Brick-tex siding, the
mirrored twin of 31 W, Washingtom Street

27 8, Bouth 8¢, ca. 1880-1900, two-story, two-bay-wide, hip-roofed vernacular frame house, oue-siory, two-bay hip-roofed
porch with wooden columas, obseured by awning, aluminum siding

28-30 5, Bouth 51, ca. 1850-1860, two-story, five-bay-wids hip-roofed Greek Revivalivernacular frame double house {fous
original bays with early one-bay addition on the south end of the ficade), one-story, two-bay south porch, one-story, pre-bay
portico on aorth end, square posts with simplified Tuscan posts i

°
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28931 5. Bouth 81, ca. 1870-1890, two-atory, three-bay-wide hip-roofed frame and weatherboard house, ane~story, three-
bay porch with wond posts.

118 5. Bouth 51, ca 1830~ 1910, one-story, three-bay-wide hip-reofed vernacular frame coitage, one-story, three-bay porch
with square wooden posis, asbestos siding

P12 5. Bouth 51, ca. 18435-1863, wo-story, three-bay-wide hip-ronfed mid 19C frame house with Greek Revival detailing,
Greek Revival portico with Derle posts and eatablature, L19C projecting polygonal bay, asbestos siding

115 5. South Bt ca., 18651890, two-story, three-bay vernacular frame and wide weatherboard multiple dwelling, two two
story porches with square posts and gable roofs, cormice returns, cornice brackets, reeded 30fis one-story, one-bay portico
with cormice returns, Square posts in centrad bay

P16-118 S, South Bt, 1870-1835, two-story, six-hayewide, hip-roofed frame and weatherboard double house with elaborate
Itafianate dewmils, incised window hoods, cornice brackets, two ong-story, one-bay hip-roof porticos with mrned posts

H17-119 &, South St., va. 1880-1300, two-story, four-hay vernacular frame and weatherboard doubie house, two two- bay
units under hip roof, one-story, six-bay porch with sguare posts

124 5. South S, ca. 1863-1880, two-story, tdree-hay-wilde symmetrical vernacular Srame house, hip roof, two Interior end
brick chimneys. paired cornice brackets, alumbnum siding with some original weatherboards showing through

L23 5. South St ca. 19701980, one-story brick ranch (N
201203 5. South St ca, 1870, two-stary, four-bay vernacular frame side-gable house, central chimney, asbestos siding
202 5. Bouth 8t ca. 1970-1980, one-story beick house, hip roof (N
205 5. South S, ca. [930-1970, ane-story frame house, vinyl siding (MW

204 5. Sowh St o 1945, one-and-a-halfstory, two-bay side-gabled transiionalLate Colonial Revival frame howse, Sl
width, two-bay shed dormer, one-story, onc- bay gable front portico on wrought ron posts, aluminum siding

209 5. Bouth S, ca 1910, ong-story, two-bay vernacular frame cottage, low pitched side gable roof with shed extension,
shed porch with raking eaves, turned wood posts, Brickiex siding

210 5. Seanh 3t ca. 1880-1900, two-story, three-bay, vernacular frame house with standing seam metal hip roof, one-story,
three-bay porch, one bay porch with Doric columns, asbestos siding
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211 5. South S, ca. 1913-1930, one-story, two-bay, low-pitched side-gable house, one-story, two- bay poreh somected
1o main roof by small shingled deck reof, vinyl siding.

215 5. South Bt ca. 1903, two-story transitional frame house, hip roof, shaninum siding, early 200 Georgian Revival door
surround

216 5. South i, ca. 1860-1580, ane-story, three-bay vernacular frame and weatherboard hip-roofed bungalow, one-story,
one-bay porch with wooden posts

2205, South St ca 1880, two-story, four-bay frame and weatherboard double house, hip roof, one- story, four-bay porch
with wonden posis,

224 5, South 5L, ca. 1885-1910, vwo-story, three-bay-wide hip-roofed vernacular frame and weatherboard house, one 1y,
three-bay hip-ronfed porch with Dorie posts set on brick piers,

2253 5. South St, ca. 1920-1940, one-story gable reof frame store with stepped parapet facade, combination of German
siding (original) and masonite, painted Pepsi fog and "Ligde Sepermarket” on south elevation, most recently The Litls

Supermarket

228 8. South St ca. 1880-1890, pyvo-story, four-hay-wide, hip-roofed vernacular frame house, wood weatherboards, aoe-
story, bay porch with sawn brackets and urned posts

West Washinston Street

821 W. Washington St. The Reconciliation Fetlowship Church, 1934, one-story brick gabie-front church with anenuated
wooden steeple (ML)

623 W. Washington St. ca, 1908, rwo story, hipped reof brick double house. asymumetrical Facade, three-bay, one story
hipped porch with Tuscan square wood posts, two single leaf eniry doors in cast bay, four interior side and end chimneys,
brick bond is five rows of strewcher for one row of Plemish bond

633 W. Washington 3, Robert B, Lee Blementary snhoolPetersburg Schools Pre-Vocational Technical Center, 1911,
symmetrical, two-story, five-bay-wide Instinutional building on raised hasement with "H” otprint, clad in boff brick and
stuccoed masonry, two-story portics supported by 2 colossal order of clustered fluted wooden columns with cast iron
Corinthian capitals, wood sash geometric pane windows, roof of hipped segments joined together along 2 central ridge

836 W. Washington S, ca. 1885, two-story frame Queen Anne-style house, two-bay gable front with one bay deep
intersecting gable on east end, one story wraparound parch with turned posts, spindlework, and brackets, front gable and
projecting bay with pressed metal imbrication,
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640 W, Washington 5¢, ca 1870-1880, our-bay-wide, two-hay-deep frame house, hipped roof olad i standing seam metal,
carverd cornice brackets, three-sided projecting bay on east end, three bay, one-story hipped reof parch supported on
simplified Tuscan posts.

546-648 W, Washington 5t ca. 188D, two-story, four-bay symmetrical brick double house, two three-sided projecting bays,
sealloped frieze board and paired wooden comice brackets, deck-roofed canopy with wonden brackets, cast-iron round-arch
deor hoods, 4 interior end chimneys.

647 W, Washington 51, ca. 18905, two-and-one-half story Cueen Anne-style wood-frame house, cross gable roofl fromt
gable with proiecting pelygonal bay, narrow 171 wood sash windows with peaked detatl, one-story, four-bay porch,
sumplified Tuscan order porch posts with scalloped smbellishment on the capital, three interior corbeled cap chimneys

762 W, Washingron 5S4, ca. 1930-1945, one-story conerete bock commercial building, stuooned brick facade, gable mof
with curved Spanish Mission-style parapet, window and door alterstions. currsntly OK Convenience Mart

70F W. Washington 3¢, ca. 1920-1930, one-story brick conmercial building, et roof with parapet, concrete coping,
Cotonial Revival detatling, concrete quoins, plate glass windows, former grocery store, curremly Petersburg Plumbing and
Heating

71T W, Washington 51, ca. 1880-1894, two-stary, thrse-bay-wide frame and weatherhoard, hip- rocfed house, one-story,
three bay porch with combination projecting fawemansard and bipped roof, nned pests, spindlewaork and carved brackets

713 W, Washington St ca. 19301944, one-story gable-front, combination wood and brick Tudor Revival commercial
building, brick side walls ladd in stretcher bond of nubby novelty brick, stuconed gable, currenily AAA Apnliance

716 W, Washington 5t., 1889, 1.3 story, three-bay brick, hipped roof” house, three gable dormers, pressed brick facade,
rusticated sandstons lintels over windows, one-story, three-hay porch with hip roof, Doris columng with entablature and a
balustrade, three interior corbeled-cap chimneys

721 W, Washingion 5t., ca. 1930-1940, one-story Muoderse metal-clad concrete hlock service station, two garage bays in
projecting hlock paired with offics area with three large plate glass windows, currentdy Fagle Gas

301 W, Washinglon 56, ca 1850-1580, Blackwell Drugs, one-and-a-half-story Tudor Revival brick commenrcial building,
cruciform roof, sweco and famx-half dmbering in gables and gable dormer on the sast side, large plate glaes windows and
a recessed sntry door, sucrently Bob's Laundromat

804 W. Washington 3¢, ca 1853, Couch House, two-story, three- bay brick Greek Revival side-hall, double pile house with
& twensiory, two- bay late 19 C addition on the east side, one-bay, one-story flat-roof portice supported on futed and
shamfered posts, multiple Same additions at mar, twe former cutbuildings, one office now 12 5. Scuth Street, one kiwhen
snclosed n additions
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8O3 W. Washington Bt, 1913, 2.3 story, two-hay-wide brick and frame hip-rovfed dwelling, hip-roofed dormer with two
S-pane fixed windows, cne-story, two-bay hip-ronfed porch on brick piers, standing seam metal roof, single leaf wood and
glass door flanked by two multi-pane sidelighis

308 W, Washington 5t, ca 1910-1920, two-story, three- bay-wide brick row house-type dwelling, one-story, two-bay hip-
ronfed porch with fluted Doric columns, recessed brick panels over second-floor windows

809 W. Washington 5, 1915, 2.3 story, two-bay-wide brick and frame hip-roofed dwelling, hip-roofed dormer with two
&% wond sash wmﬁsws, one-story, two-bay hip-roofed porch with paired and clostersd Tuscan solonpettes on brick plers,
standing seam metal roof, single feaf wood and glass door flanked by two multi-pane sidelights

310 W, Washington 51, ca. 1880-1890, two-story, three-bay-wide, vernacular frame dwelling, cornice brackets, porch is
a fhared v&zﬁé‘ﬁ}i an Qupen Anne-sivie brackets with g ;%areeewmy hip-roofed porch on square wood posts builf around it
asbestos siding, house burned recently

R11 W, Washington 81, ca 1880-1900, two-story, two-hay-wide hip-roofed vernacular frame dwelling, cornice brackets,
ane-story, three-bay porch with Tusean columns, second-floor windows have low pitched pedimental hoods supported by
careed brackels

&14 W, Washington ¢, ca 1870-1880, two-story, three-hay-wide, hip-roofed vernacular frame house with lalianwie detmils,
one-sIy, ng-bay portico with grouped 'p(}iycfmai Tuscan posts, large carved pendan suspended from portico srchitrave,
cormice brackets with pendant elements, 272 wood-sash windows with dentil and entablature architraves

813 W. Washington 3¢, ca 1880-1900, two-and-a-laifstory, Late-VictorianJusen Anpe ame and westherboard hip-
raofed house, polygonal two-story corner turret with fat roof, cornice brackets, wraparound porch with Tuscan columms,
gable dormer with quarreled window

818 W. Washington 31, ca. [880-1890, vwo-story, four-bav-wide decl/fdse-Mansard-ronfed Late Victorian/Queen Anne
house, two-story polygonal projecting bay, deck-mofed canopy on brackets with pendants wver double-leaf multi-paneled
wood entry doors, cast-iron roof cresting, German siding

819 W. Washington St, ca. 1870-1890, former store amd residence, two-story, three-bay-wide verngcular frame and
westherbomrd mixed use structure, recessed entry door in storefront, second-floor windows with low pitched pedimental
hoods :

823 W, Washingion 5t ca. 1380-1890, two-story, three-bay-wide, hip-roofed vernascular fame house, ong-story, three-bay
poreh with decarative posts and sawn brackets, Brick-lex and vertical wood sheathing

823 W, Washingion 84, ca 1880-1890, two-siory, throp-bay-wide, bip-roofed v&macz;}ar frame house, ng-siory, diree-bay
porch, turned posts and decorative sawn brackets, corndes brackets
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825 W, Washingion S, ca. 18801883, vwo-story verngenlar frame and weatherboard bouse comsisting of main hipped
block and forward projecting two-story section, one-story, ene-bay flat reof porch with simplified Tuscan square wood post

830 W, Washington St., ca. 1870-1880, Three bay wide, single pile two story vernasular fame structure. Roof is low
pitched hipped clad in standing seam metal. Two Inderisr ridge chimneys near center of roof, First floor window are foor
length. Three bay, one story hipped roof porch is supported on square posts. Paired brackets af comers.

831 W, Washington 58, ca. 1880, two-story Cueen Amne/vernacular hip-roofed frame and weatherboard house, projecting
threg-sided polygonal bay, recessed two-story single bay with eniry door, cornice hrackets, wraparound porch with
spimblewnrk, the mirrored twin of the house at 23 S, South Sireet

842 W. Washingion 5., ca. 18731883, Real House, two-story Halianate/V intorian brick dwelling, single bay paired with
projecting polygonal bay, one-story, one-bay porch with flared deck roof and Vicorianized Tuscan posts with scrolf work,
incised window honds, elaborate bracketad comine

B4S-B47 W. Washington 5, ca. 1880- 1890, symmetrical two-story, fur-bay vernacalar frame double house, one-story,
foug-tay porch with combination bipped and false-Mansard roof three sets of paired Queen Anne sash windows af second
finar,

346 W Washington St. 1897, St ohw's Episcopal Chureh, cruciform gable-from brick Romanesque Revival church, five-
stage tower with pyramidal roof, wansept with gable parapets, sngaged brick buttresses, figural and gecmetric stained and
inaded glass windows

849 W, Washington S8, ca 1970, Pharmacy, one-story brick structure with wouod-shingled deck roaf {MC
Went Wothe Street

S10-612 W, Wythe S, ca. 188D-1910, two-story, four-bay-wide vernacular frame bowse, rregular projecting bays on the
west side, ong-story, four- bay porch with wrought iron supports and square wood posts, vertical metal shemthing and
Brickiex siding

620622 W . Wythe 51, ca. 1880-1910, two-story, four-bay-wide shed-roofed vernacalar frame double house, one-story,
four-bay porch with nrned posts, shmple cornice brackess aoross the Bade

§24-626 W, Wythe S, ca. 1880-1910, two-story, four-bay-wide shed-raofed vernacular frame double house, one-story,
four-bay porch with turned posts, simple cormice brackets across the facade, stone-testured asphalt siding
with turned posts, simple cornice brackets across the facade

628-630 W, Wythe 3¢, ca. 1880-1810, two-story, four-bay-wide shed-roofed vernacular frame double house, ong-s mw
four-bay porch with furped posts, simple cornice brackets avross the facade, stone-textured asphalt siding
(KO



NPE Form 18-980-3 OMB N, 1024-8618
{8-86}

United States Department of the Interior

National Park Service

Mational Register of Historic Places {Folly Castle Historic District Boundary Increase)
Continuation Shest {Petershurg, Va.)

Section _ 8 Page 21

prene—.

8. Statement of Significance

The Folly Castle Historic District second boundary increase represents a largely middle and working
class neighborhood that developed as the population of Petersburg increased and the city expanded
outward from the old city center. Residential, religious, educational, commercial, and industrial
themes are represented by buildings in the boundary increase area and, tvpical of the city of
Petersburg, this array of building types 5 located in close proximity to one another. A variety of
building and house types and styles are found in the boundary increase area from small worker’s
cottages o the larger more stylish houses located along West Washington Street. A portion of the
increase area also represents an African American neighborhood that developed after the Civil War
as former slaves made the transition to freedom. This section of the expanded boundary increase area
was iitaposed with the larger white comrunity from the late 1870s until the late 1950s and 1960s
when the entire community became 3 predominately African American neighborhood in the face of
“white fight” from urban arcas,

The Folly Castle Historic District boundary increase s significant under Criterion A for #s local
history as a neighborhood that became home to a commmunity of African Americans whe were making
the transition after the Civil War from slave to economically independent free men and women, The
area also is significant under Criterion C for #ts local architecture that represenis a variety of its
buildings that range in styles and types from the large and stylish Queen Amn and Colonial Revival-
style dwellings found along West Washington Street 1o the plain double houses and small worker’s
cottages found on the cross streets as well as the Neo-Classical, Romanesque and Colonial Revival
style buildings that represent religious, educationsl, commercial, and mdustrial themes in Petershurg.

Historieal Background

The Jones family, whe figured prominently in the establishment of Petershurg, owned the land in the
area of the proposed extension to the Folly Castle Historic District as well as in the original district.
The heart of the proposed extension area lay between two developments of the Jones family. On its
south and east was Gillfield and MNew Gillfield and to the west lay Pride’s Field.

Peter Jones, who laid out Mew Town in 1762 and built Folly Castle in 1763, left his property
mcluding his mansion o his niece Sarah Mewsuri at his death in 1779, Sarah married Frasmus Gill
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in 1786 and they subdivided thelr extensive land holdings into lots, which became known as Gillfield.
Although the General Assembly authorized the amzexatmﬁ of Gillfield into Petersburg in 1798, it
seems 1o have been included in its boundaries by 1784.° Gillfield was located south and southeast
of Farmer Street in the proposed expansion area. In 18310, after Gill’s death, his widow and family
laid out New Gillfield which was north of the original Gillfield and east of Guarantee Street.

Just to the east of the proposed extension area was the Paradise Tract located on the southwest
corner of West Washington Street and Guarantes Street where the old ?mmfsmrg High School now
stands. In 1813, Joseph Jones s@ié this land to the Petersburg Academv and it has been used for
educational purposes ever since.” In 1835, the property ownership was transferred to the Anderson
Seminary, a free school established by a &qamz of David Anderson, which stood on this lot unitl the
high school was bullt in 1917.°

To the west of the proposed extension of the Folly Castle Historie District was Pride’s Field, William
Pride purchased the Pride’s Field tract about 1745 from Major Peter Jones, About 1807 to 1810,
Pride’s heirs, who were Joneses, sold the land 1o four Petersburg men who laid out the tract in Iots
but retained the name Pride’s Field. Prior to this the land had been a large farm with a few tenant
houses and mills at the north end of the narrow falls of the Appomattox River. It was the mills and
canal that attracted the foursome to purchase and develop this land. An 1830 plat shows the layowt
of Pride’s Field mdudzm the ownership of lots, the canal, and a large “companys square”™ where the
canal basin was located.” Pride’s Field was bounded on the sast by South Street on the nonth by Plum
Street (now McKenzie Street), on the west by West Street and on the south by Brick House Run,

The west side of South Street and one block of West Washington Street from South Street to Dunlop
Street of the district extension would have been in Pride’s Fleld. In 1853, C harles F. Couch and two
partners purchased four lots on this block which encompassed the entire block.”  The new owners

*James G. Scott and Edward AWyan, IV, Petersburg s Story, 4 History, (Petersburg: By the Authors, 19603, p. 35.
*Petershurg Husting Court Deed Book [PHC DB 4:175.

*Seott and Wyat, p. 117,

PHL DB §:29¢

TPHC DB 20:96.
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oo

re-platted the entire block into smaller lots. Ten. 80° x 180" lots fronted Washington Street, two
smaller lots on South Street, and twenty even smaller lots were laid out on Shepherd Street with Fox
Alley bisecting the block from South to Dunlop streets. Couch reserved the corner lof of Washington
and South streets to Fox Alley for himself and built his house there about the same time.? Civil War
era maps shows buildings along both sides of Washington Street, although more towards the western
end of this block *

Joseph Jones owned most of the land in the proposed extension area on both sides of Washington
Street berween Pride’s Field and the existing Folly Castle Historic District in the late eighteenth
century. Deeds referred to this area as “Joseph Jones” slip of land.” This land had descended from
the original Peter Jones through several generations to Joseph Jones a general in the militia. He fived
at Cedar Grove, located southwest of the proposed extension area, which he also had inherited
through his father from Abrabam Jones. Jones Street, one of the early roads in this area, derives its
name from the Jones family and was earlier known as Jones Road or the General Jones Road. Tt also
was referred to in deeds as the “public road leading by General Jones dwelling to McRae's Ml
which stood just north of the proposed extension area.

An 1839 map of the City of Petersburg shows most of Joseph Jones “slip of land™ as open and
undivided. Jones Road (now Jones Street), South Street, and Washington Street appear on the map.
North of Washington Street, Commerce and Hinton streets have not been extended and Hazel street
does not exist. South of Washington Street, Pine Strest is not shown nor are any of the east/west
streets of Lumsden and Lawrence. Shepherd (now Wythe Street) and Farmer has not besn extended
through the extension area.

The Jones land north of Washington Street and east of South Street was sold off in large lots and as
late as 1877 few buildings were located in this area.  Dr. Robert Massenbury had purchased 2.5 acres
from Jones at the northeast cormer of Washington Street and Jones Road by 1789 where he built a
large house. The house and its numerous dependencies are shown on Civil War era maps. Hergy
Nollner (also spelled Nolener) later purchased the Massenbury property. He already owned property

*BHC DB 20:97.

2%

"Capt. Cabvin D, Cowles, compiler, The Official Mititary Atlas of the Civil War, {Mew York, Gramercy Books, 19833,
plate XL ) )
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on the south side of West Washington Street, in the existing district, which e purchased as early as
1812 from Joseph Jones.

Also located on or adjacent to the eastern part of the Massenbury/Nollner property were springs
which became part of the city’s water supply. The Petershurg Aqueduct Company was created in
1822 to manage the Petersburg water system, which had been established in the early 1800s to furnish
water to the town’s residents through subterranean pipes. Among other sources, it drew part of its
water from springs located on the Massenbury/Nollner property. One history of Petersburg refers
to the springs as Dr. Nollner’s springs and in 1838 the Aqueduct Company referred to this property
as their reservoir lot."” At some point. the springs ceased to be used for the city’s water supply and
it the first half of the twentieth century a church was built here. The Fellowship Church. a non-
contributing resource in the district extension, now stands on this lot.

Beginning in the late 1830s, several other large tracts of the Jones land on the north side of
Washington Street were sold but it was not until after the Civil War that this land was further
subdivided and developed. James Cogbill and Richard Q. Weeks held substantial tracts of land on
the north side of Washington Street that had been purchased from Jones. Between the late 1860s and
1880s, their heirs further subdivided this land and sold the lots."" It was only after these large tracts
of land began to be broken up that the existing houses were built in this area between Washington
and Comrmerce sireets.

The south side of Washington Street in the extension area developed differently. An 1838 plat lays
out a plan for Joseph Jones's land south of Washington Street and appears to be a replatting of
Jones’s land afler his property north of Washington Street had been sold. Jones had died by this time
and his son Thomas was handling his estate. Jones Street bound on the east and south by Brick House
Run and on the west this land. Its northern boundary appears to be Nollner’s southern line. This
property was divided into twenty-one lots. Lots one through fourteen were half-acre lots and sixtesn
through twenty-one even larger. Ten of the twenty-one lots were owned by Robert Leskie and David
. Brydon and the other eleven were owned by Charles D. Mclndoe.”  These three men were

Ugeatt and Wyatt, p. 60; PHC DB 10:440.
HPHC DB 220346, 2531 5; 38:330; 4931,

Rl DR 10:494,
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tobaceonists and business associates who had purchased these lots for speculation and development.

At the time of the Civil War, Jones™s “slip of land” continued to be relatively undevelo ped. Although
Petersburg reserved land as early as the 18405 in order to extend Commerce Street through the
extension area, it is not shown on the Civil War era maps of the citv.” Maps from that period show
several buildings at the intersection of Jones and Washington streets such as the Ragland tobacco
tactory and houses lining Jones Road. There were a number of houses on the east side of §. South
street and Dr. Couch’s house and dependencies on the southwest corner of Washington and South
are also visible. The block of Washington between South and Dunlop has several houses but it not

as populated as Jones Road.

Significant changes occurred in the proposed extension area during the late nineteenth century and
early twentieth century. West Washington Street, the major east/west thoroughfare in the extension
ared, became the preeminent street of the district, Joseph Jones "slip of land” between the existing
Folly Castle Historic District and Pride’s Field began to develop as many of the existing large houses
aleng Washington Street were built during this period and supplanted the industry that had been
found here as late as the 1890s. The Ruben Ragland tobacco factory, which was standing in 1877
when it appeared on the Beers Map, was torn down and replaced with an impressive brick double
house (123-096-0134) by the early 1880s. In 1915, J. W. Friend. an insurance agent, lived here, The
Mcllwaine House (123-096-0116), a large Queen Anne-stvle house on the northeast corner of
Washington and Jones Street, was built about 1889 by William B. Mclllwaine, 3 prominent
Petersburg attorney. The house was featured in the 1903 4drt Work of Petersburg as one of the grand
houses along Washington Strest.' Others. whoe lived on West Washington Street in the 1870s
through 1890s, when most of these houses were built, included William H. Tappey, co-owner of an
iron foundry and machine shop, His house and lot stood on the southwest comer of Washington and
Pine but is no longer extant. Several men involved with the tobaceo mdustry also has houses on
Washington Street including J. W. Willlamson of 663 W. Washington and Charles W, Spicer of 636
W. Washington {123-096-0132)." Commission merchants and salesmen, an important aspect of
Petersburg’s economy, lived also on Washington Street.

PPHC DB 23:711; 11370,
vt Work of Petershurg, {(Chicage: Gravure Hustration Co., 1903),

#1. Chataigne, Chataigne s Fetersburg Z}irgz;mm 1878.77; 1882-1833.
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African-Americans lived in the proposed extension area as early as the 1870s, if not earlier,
particularly along Jones Street. By 1913, when the city directories first began © list residents by
street address as well as by name and race, almost all occupants of Jones Strest, south of West
Washington Street, were Afiican American. White residents lived on the adjscent street of Pine and
the first block of South Street south of Washington Street. (City directories designated African
Americans by race from the 1880s to the early 1950s.) Washington Street and everything north of
Washington Street was occupied by white residents.

This area south of West Washington Street was part of Eureka which was bounded on the north by
West Washington Street, on the east by Gillfield and the existing Folly Castle Historic District, on
the south of by fairgrounds, and on the west of the CSX railroad.® It developed as a working class
neighborhood in response to the mills and factories located north and east of this area. By the time
of the Civil War, there were a fow free Aftrican American property swners on Shepherd, Farmer and
South streets.” Jones Street and the lower blocks of 5. South Street in the extension area appears
to have been the sastern edge of the larger Aftican American community that developed affer the war
and extended west to Indiana Street. From the 1870s, this African American community existed
adjacent to the larger white community to the north and east unti] the entire extension area became
predominately African American in the 19605 and 19705 when “white fight” from the city was at s
height.

The ownership patterns of many of the homes along South South, Jones, and Pine sireets are
Hilustrative of the gains and losses of Aftican American over the vears. In the post-Civil War years,
particularly in the 1870s, many African Americans purchased land and built homes in Petersburg and
in the extension area. Between 1870 and 1890, African American home ownership increased 300
percent while white ownership failed to significamly increase. In 1873, when the estate of a white
carpenter who lived on Jones Street was divided into lots and sold, two lots were purchased by
Adrican Americans and two by Drury A, Hinton an attormey of substantial means who lived in the

“wary Ellen Bushey, stal., “Aftican Americans in Petersburg,” prepared for the Chy of Petershurg, Department of
Planning sod Communily Development, 1984, p. 71,

YRushey, p. 71.
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existing Folly Castle Historic District.’® All of these lots extended from Jones to South Strest and
were later divided.

Lot A was sold to €. €. Morton an African American lshorer who immediately improved the lot. In
1909, the Jones Street side of lot A was owned by Robert H. Cooley, an Aftican Amenican postman
who by 1913, when he sold this property, was the manager of the Southern Ald Society. Although
Cooley lived in the area, first two blocks north and then south of the extension area, it appears he
never lived here but held It as nvestment or rental property. Lot B was purchased in 1873 by Edward
and George Hendricks, Edward, a hostler, lived in a house he erscted on the South Street side {(now
209 South Strest [123-096-02081) of the lot while George, a laborer, Hived on the Jones Street side.
In the 1890s, the Hendricks lost thelr property for non-payment of taxes. Mary W. W, Smith, a white
widow who lived on East Tabb Street, also owned 214-216 and 212 Souwth Jones Street {123-096-
0190 and 123-096-0189) purchased them in 1893.” For many years, these houses were rental
property for Mrs. Smith. In 1913, 1. E. Wilson, a black carpenter, purchased 209 South Street.” In
1916, Smith sold her Jones Street property to William H. Johnston, Johnson was the principal of the
Jones Street Colored School (and had been since at least 1857) which was located at the intersection
of South Jones and Wilcox Streets, south of the extension area. Johnson never Hved here, his house
was on Rome Street, and be apparently used this as rental property. In addition to this property, he
individually or jointly owned eight other tracts of land, all with buildings, which presumably were
rental property.

The land purchased by Drury A, Hinton included 221 3. South Street and 220 5. Jones Street,
Hinton, a lawver and Commonwealth’s Attorney in Perersburg, Hved in a house he built 1874-75 on
Washington Street in the existing Folly Castle Historic District.”” He held the South and Jones Street
houses a3 investment property until 1893 when he sold #t to Tavler Williams, an African American
laborer.

FPHC DB 35671
PPHC DB 86:336.
“CPotsrsburg, Virginia Dirsctory 1915-1915, (Petersburg: Hill Directory Company, Inc., 1316), p, 429,

3y, Chataigne, Chataigne s Petershurg Divectory, 1879-80, p. 106,
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Many of the African Americans who lived in this section of the extension area worked i trades that
reguired manual labor such as laborers, hucksters, and carpenters. However, many of the white
residents of this area held simmlar jobs. While the extension area maintained its mixture of races for
many vears. it became a predominantly African American community in the 1950s and 1960s.”

The are a mumber of non-residential properties in the extension area. The Neo-Classical Revival-style
Robert E. Lee School anchors the eastern end of the extension area while the Romanesque Revival-
stvle St Jobn's Episcopal Church (123-096-143) anchors the western end. The Robert E. Lee Schoo!
was erected in 1911 on the former Massenbury/Nollner property. Bullt six vears before the nearby
high school, it 15 one of the earliest extant examples In Pefersburg of an education building
constructed on a monumental scale.

Grace Episcopal Church established St. John's Episcopal Church, which stands at the commer of West
Washington and Dunlop streets, in 1867 as a mission in the western part of the city. A frame chapel
wag butlt in this location in 1868 and served until the present church was built in 1898, Petershurg
architect Harrison Waite designed the Romanesque Revival-style church”  The Reverend W.AR.
Geodwin served as rector of 8. John's from 1893 to 1903 when he lefi to serve Bruton Parish
Church in Williamsburg where he became instrumental in creating Colonial Williamsburg. Joseph
Cotton was perhaps the church’s most famous congregant.”  In the 1920s, the church purchased the
adjacent house (123-096-0144), a finely detalled example of the ltallanate/Victorian stvle, for its
rectory. Although the church continues to own the house, it ceased to be used as a rectory in the
1960s.

Although most of the area In the proposed extension to the Folly Castle Historle District now is
residential, that was not abways the case. Part of the extension area. from Pine Strest 1o Brick House
Run, remained open well into the 18905 largely because of the industrial uses found there. Henry
Nollner owned the norther end of this section on Washington Street (in the existing Folly Castle
historic district) and had a slaughterhouse there. Just to the south and within the boundaries of the

Zhushey, p. 71
“perersburg Chamber of Commerce, The City of Petersburg, rginis, 1894,

“tigynie W. CraBon, Ir, History of St Jobn s PE Church, 1863-1960, {8y the author, 1953, revised 19603, p. 10,
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proposed extension was the soap and candle fictory of James Smith which probably made good use
of the slaughter house by-products. James Smith & Son had been established here in 1844 and in
1894 produced 275,000 pounds of soap annually. [t is listed in this location as late as 1897, South
of the Smith land was the C. R. Bishop Tobaceo Factory plus a tannery and another stock vard.”
These may have been just east of the boundary Hne for the proposed extension but were an extension
of this industrial corridor. This industrial corridor gradually bevame a residential ares.  Another
factory in the proposed extension area was the Reuben Ragland tobaceo factory at the southeast
corner of West Washington Street and Jones Street. This factory was used as a hospital during the
Civil War and because of its distance from the shelling in the eastern sections of the city, it was one
of the few that remained open throughout the war.” The factory stood until the late 1870s or early
1880s before it was demolished 10 make way for the brick double house {123-096-0134) that now
stands there,

in 1906, the American Cigar Company purchased Lot 48 of Pride’s Field and constructed a cigar
factory bere. It was later used for the storage of tobacco. The building is still standing, although
vacant. On the southern edge of the proposed district, stands the now vacant Stuart-Keith &
Company shirt factory, which was built, in the first quarter of the twentieth cenfury. Typical of
Petersburg, both of these twentieth century factories were essentially surrounded by residences
although other fctories were located within a block or two. The cigar fictory still has houses on all
sides. The area sowh of the Stuart-Keith factory was filled with double houses, or double tenements
as they are also called in Petersburg, which frequently were built to house mill and factory workers,”
Most of these bouses south of the extension area were demolished for urban renewal in the sarly
19705,

In the early twentieth century, the ares continued to grow and evolve. The large houses along
Washington Street were owned and occupied by professionals such as doctors and real estate agents.

g " . L.
" Petersburg Chamber of Commerce, The Cliy of Pesersburg, Virginia, 1894,

%, W. Beers, Topegraphical Map of Petersburg, Dinwiddiz Cownty, Vo, (Richrond: Southern and Southwestern
Surveying and Publishing Co., 1877}

e dward A, Wyatt, 1V, dlong the Streets of Petershurg, (Petersburg: By the Author, 1943), p. 56,

#gushey, p. 71
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Ceeupations for residents on South South inchuded grocers, salesmen, a baker, a a rumster, several
music teachers, as well as laborers, porters, and painters. African Americans living on Jones Street
had similar occupations including carpenters, laborers, and paperhangers.” “E?zé: Robert E. Lee
Elementary School was built in 1911 on Washington Street and in the 1920s to 19405 2 small
commercial area developed on Washington Street between Jones and South streets to serve the
community. About 1833, a grocery store was built. The Tudor Revivalstyle huilding on the
southwest comer of West Washington Street and South Street opened about 1931 as the Blackwell
Smith Drug Store. Blackwell Smith was a prominent Petersburg resident whose two sons went on
0 Mmm@ Pregz::iem of the Medical College of Virginia and serve in the Virginia House of
Delegates.” A drug store had sw@d am one corner of this infersection since 1886 when Joseph M.
Burke, a pharmacist, open one here.”!

The extension area has continued o evolve. A number of the larger houses along Washington Strest
were converted (0 multi-family units such as the Mellwaine House (123-096-0116) which was
subxdivided into apartments about 1952, Other large houses hecame boarding houses. A few of these
dwellings have been demolished and in some cases were replaced by modern commercial buildings.
The north south streets, however, have continued largely as single family housing. These changes
here have been more superficial with the original material covered with synthetic siding and
replacement windows. The widening and realignment of Wythe Street necessitated the removal of
several houses on South South, Jones, and Pine Streets. The extension area, however, has not
suffered the large-scale demolition associated with urban renewal projects in the 1970s that claimed
the neighborhood immediately to the south. 1t is a typical neighborhood of urban Petersburg and
continues i convey the sense of a middle and working class neighborhood.

Pperershurg, Virginia Directory 191519186, {Petersburg: Hill Directory Co., Inc, 1915% Hill's Petersbury
{Dinwiddiz County, Va.) Clty Directory, Vol X1, {Richmaond: Hill Directory Company, inc., 19381

®pictures of the Past, (Fort Henry Branch, Association for the Preservation of Virginia Antiguities, 1989), p. 19.

Mpetershurg Chamber of Commerce, The £ ity of Potershurg, Virginia, 1894,
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Wyatt, Edward A, IV, diong the Spreets of Petershurg. Petersburg: By the Author, 1943,

1. Geographical Data:
UTM REFERENCES:

5. 1B 2BS730 1099600
. 18 283900 1099730
7o 18 2B3IGT0 1099630
8. 18 283380 1099630
S 1B 2R3890 1099630
10, 18 283880 1099530
t1. 18 283880 1099500
12, 1R 283880 10995330
13. 18 286026 1099320
14, 18 283830 1099350
15, 18 285040 1099100
14, 18 2BS800 1099080
7. 1B 283680 1099450
18, 18283320 1099350

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION:
The boundaries of the Folly Castle Historic District (Boundary Increase) are indicated on the
accompanying base map which is drawn at g scale of 17 = 200,

VERBAL BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION:

The boundaries for the Folly Castle Historic District boundary increase were expanded to nclude the
historic residential areas east of the existing historic district and the remainder of the' high school lot
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that was not included in the existing district. They were also drawn to include the commercial node
of the community on West Washington Street as well as the factories at each corner of the disirict
but exchide vacant lots where possible. After further study. the district may warrant further expansion
to the west and/or north or the creation of a new district but due to Snancial and time constraints the
study area could not be further expanded.
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All photographs are of the Folly Castle Historie District (Boundary Increase), Petersburg, Virginia.
The negatives are on file at the Virginia Department of Historie Resources, Richmond, Virginia.
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Mellwaine House and Robert E. Lee Elementary School, northeast corner of West Washington
Street and Jones Sireet, view looking northeast; Kerrt Culhane, photographer: May 1998,
{VIHR Megative No. 166953,

600 Block of West Washington Street, south side, view looking southeast; Kerri Cuthane,
photographer, May 1998, (VDHR MNegative No. 16695},

200 Block of West Washington Street, north side., view looking northeast; Kerri Culbane,
photographer; May 1998, (VDHR Negative No. 16694,

800 Block of West Washington Street, north side, view looking northwest; Kerri Culhane,
photographer; May 1998, (VDHR Negative Mo, 16854),

800 Block of West Washington Street, south side, with Dr. Couch House on the comer, view o
the sputheast; Ashley Neville, photographer; March 1999, (VDHR Negative No. 17440),

2531 South South Street, zast side, view looking southeast; Ashley Neville, photographer,
March 1999, (VDHR Megative No. 17440).

100 Block South South Street, west side, view looking northwest; Ashley Meville, photographer,
Muarch 1999, (VDHR Negative Mo, 17440),

200 Block of South South Street, cast side, view looking east; Kerri Culbane, photographer; May
1998, (VDHR Negative Mo, 10506).

20 Block Sowh Jones Street, west side, view looking southwest; Kerri Culhane, g}h{éwgmpher;
May 1998, (VDHR Negative No. 174407

19 North South Street, east side, view looking east; Ashley Meville, photographer, March 1999,
{VDHR Negative Mo, 17440).
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11, Seidenburg & Company Cigar Factory, view looking northeast; Ashley Neville, photographer.
March 1899, (VDHR Negative No. 17440,
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IPS {(INTEGRATED PRESERVATION SOFTWARE)

SURVEY INDEX - ID#, NAME, USGE MAP

DHR FILE# PROPERTY NAME USGS QUAD MAP
123-096-G106 House PETERSBURG
123-096-0107 House PETERSBURG
123-096-0108 House PETERSBURG
123-096-0109 Double House PETERSBURG
123-096-0110 House PETERSBURG
123-096-0111 Bibleway Christian Church/The Aute  PETERSBURG
Repair Center
123-096-0112 House PETERSBURG
123-096-0113 Reconciliation Fellowship Church PETERSBLURG
123-096-0114 Double House PETERSBURG
123-096-0115 Robert E. Lee Elementary School PETERSBURG
Petersburg Schools Pre-Technical
Yocational School .
123-096-0116 House PETERSBURG
123-096-0117 Petersburg Plumbing and Heating PETERSBURG
123-096-0118 AAA Appliance PETERSBURG
123-096-03119 Eagle Gas PETERSBURLG
123-096-0120 Bob's Laundromat PETERSBURG
Blackwell Smith Drugs
123-096-0121 House PETERSBURG
123-096-0122 House PETERSBURG
123-096-0123 House PETERSBURG
123-086-0124 House PETERSBURG
123-096-0125 Store and Residence PETERSBURG
House
123-0896-0126 House PETERSBURG
123-096-0127 House PETERSBURG
123-096-0128 House PETERSBURG
- 123-096-0129 House PETERSBURG
123-0%96-0130 Double House PETERSBURG
123-096-03131 Pharmacy PETERSBURG
123-096-0132 House PETERSBURG
123-096-0133 House PETERSBURG
123-096-0134 Double House PETERSBURG
123-096-0135 (K Convenience Mart PETERSBURG
123-0896-0136 House PETERSBURG
123-096-0137 House PETERSBURG
123-096-0138 Couch House PETERSBURG
- 123-096-0139 House PETERSBURSG

(3/03/1999



123-096-0140 House
123-096-0141 House
123-096-0142 House
123-096-0143 House
123-096-0144 Real House
House
123-096-3145 5t John's Episcopal Church
123-096-0146 House
123-096-0147 House
123-098-0148 House
123-096-0149 Double House
123-096-0150 Double House
123-096-0151 Double House
123-096-0132 Double House
123-096-0153 House
[23-096-0154 House
123-096-0155 House
123-096-0156 1.B. Pittman Technical Annex
Petersburg High School Vocational
Center
123-096-0157 Double House
123-096-0138 House
123-095-0139 House
123-096-0160 House
123-096-0161 Double House
123-096-0162 House
123-096-0163 House
123-096-0164 House
123-056-0165 Double House
House
123-096-0186 House
123-066-0167 Double House
123-096-0168 Double House
123-096-3169 House
123-096-0170 House
123-096-0171 House
123-096-0172 House
123-096-0173 House
123-056-0174 House
123-096-0175 House
123-096-0176 House
123-096-0177 House
123-096-0178 House
123-096-0179 House
123-096-0130 Double House

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG



123-096-0181
123-096-0182
123-096-0183
123-096-0184
123-096-D185
123-0%96-0186
123-0%6-0187

123-096-0188
123-096-0189
123-096-0150
123-096-031591
123-096-0192
123-096-0193
123-096-0194
123-096-0195
123-096-0196
123-096-0197
123-05956-0198
123-096-0159
123-096-0200
123-096-0201
123-096-0202
[23-096-0203
123-096-0204
123-096-0203
123-0096-0206

123-096-0207
123-096-0208
123-096-0209
123-0896-0210
123-096-0211
123-096-0212
123-096-0213

123-096-0214
123-096-0215
123-096-0216
123-086-0217

123-096-0218
123-096-0219
123-096-0220
123-096-0221

House
House
House
Double House
House
House
Double House
House
House
House
Double House
Double House
House
Double House
Double House

Williams Auto & Truck Tires

House
Double House

Dan's Foreign Car Repair

Double House
House

House

House
Apartment House
Double House
House

House

Hobbs Grocery
House

House

House

House

Diouble House
The Litle Supermarket
Washington
F+L Bnack Bar
House

House

Honse

Couch Office
House

House

Double House
House

House ”

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERBBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG



123-096-0222 Double House
123-086-0223 House
123-086-0224 House
123-096-0225 House
123-096-0226 House
123-096-0227 House
123-096-0228 Double House
123-096-0229 House
123-086-0230 House
123-096-0231 Double House

House
123-066-0232 House
123-096-0233 Double House
123-006-0234 Double House
123-096-0233 House

Shed
[23-096-0236 Double House
123-096-0237 House
123-056-0238 House
123-086-0239 House

F23-086-0240 Stuart-Eeith Mapufacturing
123-096-0241 Seidenberg & Company, Inc. Cigar

Factory

American Suppliers, Inc., a branch
of American Tobacco

Engine City

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
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123-006-0118 AAA Appliance PETERABURG
123-096-0203 Apartment House PETERSBURG
123-096-0111 Bibleway Christian Church/The Auto PETERSBURG
Repar Center
123-096-0120 Bob's Lanndromat PETERSBURG
Blackwell Smith Drugs
123-096-0138 Couch Hougse PETERSBURG
123-086-0217 Couch Dffice PETERSBURG
House
123-096-0198 Dan's Foreign Car Repair PETERSBURG
123-86-0109 Double House PETERSBURG
123-096-0114 Double House PETERSBURG
123-026-0130 Double House . PETERSBURG
123-096-0134 Double House PETERSBURG
123-096-0149 Double House PETERSBURG
123-006-0150 Double House PETERRBURG
123-096-0152 Double House PETERSBURG
123-096-0131 Double House PETERSBURG
123-006-0137 Double House PETERSBIURG
123-096-0161 Double House PETERSBURG
123-096-0167 Double House PETERSBURG
123-096-0168 Double House PETERSBURG
123-0896-0165 Double House PETERSBURG
House
123-056-0180 Double House PETERSRBURG
123-0896-0184 Double House PETERSBURG
123-096-0187 Double House PETERSBURG
House
123-096-03190 Double House PETERSBURG
123-096-03191 Double House PETERSBURG
123-096-3193 Double House PETERRBURG
123-096-0194 Double House PETERSBURG
123-886-0197 Double House PETERSBURG
123-096-0199 Double House PETERSBURG
123-096-0204 Diouble House PETERSBURG
123-0896-0211 Double House PETERSBURG
123-096-021%2 Double House PETERSBURG
123-096-0222 Double House PETERSBILRG
- 123-096-0228 Double House PETEREBURG



123-096-0231 Double House
House
123-096-0233 Double House
123-096-0234 Double House
1230960236 Double House
123-096-0119 Eagle Gas
123-096-0106 House
123-096-0107 House
123-096-0108 House
123-096-0110 House
123-096-0112 House
123-006-0116 House
123-006-0121 House
123-096-0122 House
123-096-0123 House
123-0%6-0124 House
123-006-0127 House
123-096-0128 House
123-096-0126 House
123-086-0129 House
123-0596-0132 House
123-096-0133 House
123-096-0136 House
123-096-0137 House
123-0896-03139 House
123-096-0140 House
1230960141 House
123-096-0142 House
123-096-0143 House
123-096-01486 House
123-096-0147 House
123-96-0148 House
123-096-0153 House
123-096-0134 House
123-096-0155 House
123-096-0158 House
123-096-0159 House
123-096-0160 House
123-096-0162 House
§23-096-0163 House
123-096-0164 House
123-096-0166 House
123-096-0169 House
123-096-0170 House
123-096-0171 House

PETERSBURG

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG

- PETERSBURG

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBLRG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG



123-056-0172 House
123-086-0173 House
123-056-6174 House
123-096-0175 House
123-096-0176 Houss
123-006-0177 House
{23-096-0178 House
123-096-0179 House
123-096-0181 House
123-056-0182 House
123-096-0183 House
123-096-0185 House
123-096-0186 House
123-096-0188 House
123-056-0189 House
123-096-0192 House
123-006-0196 House
123-096-0200 House
123-086-0201 House
123-096-0202 House
123-006-0205 House
123-056-0206 House

Hobbs Grocery

123-096-0207 House
123-096-0208 House
123-096-0209 House
23-096-0210 House
123-006-0215 House
123-096-0214 House
123-0896-0216 House
123-006-0218 House
123-086-0220 House
123-096-0221 House
123-006-0223 House
123-096-0224 House
123-096-0225 House
123-096-11226 House
123-096-0227 House
123-096-0229 House
123-096-0230 House
123-096-0232 House
123-096-0235 House
Shed
123-096-0237 House
123-096-0238 House

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG



123-096-0239 House
123-096-0156 LB, Pittman Technical Annex
Petersburg High School Vocational
Center
123-096-0135 (K Conventence Mart
123-096-0117 Petersburg Plumbing and Heating
123-096-0131 Pharmacy
123-096-0144 Real House
House
123-056-0113 Reconciliation Fellowship Church
123-096-0115 Robert E. Lee Elementary School
Petersburg Schools Pre-Technical
Vocational School
123-096-0241 Seidenberg & Company, Inc. Cigar
Factory
American Supphers, Inc., a branch
of American Tobacco
Engine City
123-0596-01435 &t John's Episcopal Church
123-096-0125 Store and Residence
House
123-096-0240 Stuart-Keith Manufacturing
123-096-0212 The Littde Supermarket
123-096-0213 Washington
F+1 Snack Bar
123-096-0195 Williams Auto & Truck Tires

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG

PETERSBURG

- PETERSBURG

PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG
PETERSBURG

PETERSBURG
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DHRID # YEAR PROPERTY NAME
123-56-0178 1823~ 18»%1) House
122-086-0176 1840-1910 House
123-{956-0221 1845-1863 Hougse
123-095-03210 1850-1860 Diouble House
123-066-0231 1850-1880 Double House
House
123-096-0175 1R50-1970 House
123-096-0138 I833 ¢a Couch House
123-{86-0159 1835 ¢sg House
123-0896-0217 1860- }?” {1 Couch Qffice
123-096-0227 1860~ 1880 House

23-096-0203
123-0896-017%
123-006-0223
123-006-163
123-096-0222
123-036-014 1
P23-086-0143
1 23-096-02082
123-096-0206

123-096-3125
123-196-0238
123-056-0144
123-096-0130
123-096-0134
123-096-0145
123-096-0150
123-096-01151
123-096-0152
123-096-3157
123-096-0187
123-096-0191
123-006-0159
123-096-(204
123-096-0211
123-096-0228
123-096-0106
123-086-0107

FE65- i“ﬂj
18651840
18651880
18701883
[R70-1885
1870~ 1880
FS70-1880

;?z?z‘ij Ca
1RAD-1910
1ER0-1910
1HE0-19 14
1880-1910
1880 ©a
1880-1910
1880-1910
1880-1900
F880-1900
[E80-1900
L1880 ca
[8EO-1810
18&0-1910

Apartment House
House

House

Double House
Doublke House
House

House

House

Heouse

Hobbs Grocery
Store and Residence
House

Real House
Diouble House
Double House
Double House
Double House
Double House
Double House
Double House
Double House
Double House
Double House
Double House
Double House
Double House
House

House



123-096-0123
123-096-03126
123-096-0127
123-096-01258
123-096-0129
123-096-0133
123-096-0136
123-096-0140
123-096-0142
123-096-0153
123-096-0158
123-006-0164
123-096-03170
[23-096-0181
123-086-0182
123-056-03188
123-096-0192
123-096-0196
123-056-0200
123-096-0201
123-096-0216
123-096-021%
123-096-0220
123-096-0226
123-096-0730
123-086-0235
123-096-0241

123-096-0132
1230960225
123-086-0137
123-096-03161
123-096-0190
123-096-0193
123-086-0116
123-096-0124
123-096-0160
F23-096-0166
123-096-0215
1230860239
123-066-0145
123-096-0114
123-056-0167
123-096-0168

1BR0-1900
1BRO-1850
18801890
1880-1895
PRE0 ca
IS8 o
[B80-18%0
[BRO-1890
{REG-1890
1RERG-1900
1820-1900
1880-1910
18R0-1910
1RRG-1900
1REG-1910
18RG-1900
1880-1900
IBR0-1910
1880 ¢u
IS80-1800
FEE0- 1500
TEEO-1900
1820-1910
1REG-1900
1RRO-1890
1880-1910

1880-1900 Setdenberg & Company, Inc. Cigar Factory
American Suppliers, Inc., a branch of American Tobacco

Engine City
1885 ¢a
1ABS-1810
1889 ¢a
1890~ 1900
189(-1915
1890-1913
1894
1890-1905
{890-1910
1890-1910
18901910
1894 ¢a
1897
1900 oa
1900 ca
1900 ca

House
House
House
House
House
House
House
House
House
House
House
House
House
House
House
House
House
House
House
House
House
House
House
House
House
House

House
House
House
Double House
Double House
Double House
House
House
House
House
House
House

St. John's Episcopal Church

Diouble House
Double House
Diouble House



123-086-0184
123-096-0233
123-096-0234
123-096-0146
123-(96-0147
123-096-0148
123-096-03153
123-096-5154
123-096-0169
123-096-0174
123-096-0232
123-090-0180
123-096-0197
123-096-0210
123-196-0139
123-096-0171
123-086-0177
123-096-0189
123-096-0208
123-096-0113

123-0596-0194
123-096-0121
123-006-0122
[23-096-0162
123-096-0163
123-096-0209
123-096-0118
123-096-0120

123-050-0240
123-056-0212
{23-096-0109
123-096-0236
123-096-011%
123-096-0108
123-096-0135
1230960213

123-096-01 10
123-096-0117
123-056-0112
123-056-0214
123-096-01223

19001920
1904 ca
1900 ca
1900 ca
1900-1924
1500-1910
1900 oa
1900 oa
1900 oa
1900 oa
1900-1910
1905 ¢a
19051920
1903 oa
1910-1920
i910G ¢a
191-1930
Rl ca
1910 oz
1911

191351840
1915 «¢a
1213 ¢
1915 ¢a
1815 ¢a
1915-1930
120-1937
RZ0-1937

1920 oa
19201940
1930-1940
193031940
1930-1940
19303
1930-1945
1930-1940

1935-19453
1935 ¢a
195058

1840 oa
1945 «a

Double House

Double House

Double House

House

House

House

House

House

House

House

House

Double House

Double House

House

House

House

House

Honse

House

Robert E. Lee Elementary School
Petersburg Schools Pre-Technical Vocational
Schoot

Diouble House

House

House

House

House

House

AAA Appliance

Bob's Lagndromat
Blackwell Smith Drugs
Stuart-Keth Manutacturing
The Little Supermarket
Double House

Double House

Eagle Gas

House

LK Convenience Mart
Washington

F+l. Bnack Bar

House

Petersburg Plumbing and Heating
House

House

House



123-096-0172
123-096-11186
123-0%6-0207
123-0%6-0113
123-096-0183
123-096-0195
123-096-0156

123-096-0111

23-096-0198
P 3-096-0145
3 09602035
-096-{3224
~096-113]
% 09a-3173
23096-0237

1950
1950 ca
19501970
1954 ¢
1950 ca
1960s
1969

1970 cn

19708
1970-1980
1970- 1980
1970-1980
19708
19808
1980s

House

House

House

Reconciliation Fellowship Church

House

Williams Anto & Truck Tires

L.B. Pittman Technical Annex

Petersburg High School Vocational Center
Bibleway Christian Church/The Auto Repair
Center

Dan's Foreign Car Repair

House

House

House

Pharmacy

House

House






